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File No. 211159
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at the Board of Supervisors, City Hall, Room 244, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, San
Francisco, CA 94102.

c: Office of Chair Preston
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO OFFICE OF THE CONTROLLER

February 26, 2021

The Honorable Mayor London N. Breed

The Honorable Members of the Board of Supervisors
Residents of the City and County of San Francisco
San Francisco, California

| am pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City and County of San
Francisco, California (the City) for the fiscal year (FY) ended June 30, 2020, with the independent auditor’s
report. The report is submitted in compliance with City Charter sections 2.115 and 3.105, and California
Government Code Sections 25250 and 25253. The Office of the Controller prepared the CAFR in
conformance with the principles and standards for accounting and financial reporting set forth by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

The City is responsible for the accuracy of the data and for the completeness and fairness of its
presentation. The existing comprehensive structure of internal accounting controls in the City provides
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements. Because the
cost of internal control should not exceed the anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable,
rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatements. | believe
that the reported data is accurate in all material respects and that its presentation fairly depicts the City’s
financial position and changes in its financial position as measured by the financial activity of its various
funds. | am confident that the included disclosures provide the reader with an understanding of the City’s
financial affairs.

The City’s Charter requires an annual audit of the Controller’s records. The records have been audited by
Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP and are presented in the Basic Financial Statements in this CAFR. The CAFR
also incorporates financial statements of various City enterprise funds and component units that issue
separate financial statements, including the San Francisco International Airport, the San Francisco Water
Enterprise, Hetch Hetchy Water and Power, the Municipal Transportation Agency, the San Francisco
Wastewater Enterprise, the Port of San Francisco, the City and County of San Francisco Finance
Corporation, the San Francisco County Transportation Authority, the City and County of San Francisco
Health Service System, the San Francisco City and County Employees’ Retirement System, the City and
County of San Francisco Retiree Health Care Trust, and the Successor Agency to the San Francisco
Redevelopment Agency.

This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

section of the CAFR. The MD&A provides a narrative overview and analysis of the Basic Financial
Statements and is presented after the independent auditor’s report.

SAN FRANCISCO GOVERNMENT:

Profile of San Francisco Government

The City and County of San Francisco was established in 1850 and is the only legal subdivision of the State
of California with the governmental powers of both a city and a county. The City’s legislative power is
exercised through a Board of Supervisors, while its executive power is vested upon a Mayor and other
appointed and elected officials. Key public services provided by the City include public safety and
protection, public transportation, water and sewer, parks and recreation, public health, social services and
land-use and planning regulation. The heads of most of these departments are appointed by the Mayor and
advised by commissions and boards appointed by City elected officials.
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Elected officials include the Mayor, Members of the Board of Supervisors, Assessor-Recorder, City
Attorney, District Attorney, Public Defender, Sheriff, Superior Court Judges, and Treasurer. Since
November 2000, the eleven-member Board of Supervisors has been elected through district elections. The
eleven district elections are staggered for five and six seats at a time and held in even-numbered years.
Board members serve four-year terms and vacancies are filled by Mayoral appointment.

The Pandemic’s Impact on the City’s Economy and Finances

A new coronavirus strain, SARS-CoV-2, caused the disease termed COVID-19, which began to spread in
Asia in late 2019 and to the United States and other parts of the world by early 2020. The first case was
reported in the Bay Area in March 2020. By the end of March 2020, 186,000 cases had been confirmed in
the U.S., 8,000 in California, and 573 in San Francisco. Just three months later, at the close of the fiscal
year, these numbers had increased to 2.6 million, 223,000, and 4,000, respectively.

Worldwide public health interventions to contain the disease have focused on efforts to slow transmission
through encouragement or mandates to wear masks and by minimizing individual contacts through travel
restrictions and mandated suspension of many types of business, social, and cultural interactions. In San
Francisco, the Mayor and Public Health Director, together with other Bay Area counties, imposed a shelter-
in-place order on March 16, 2020. The State of California took similar steps statewide shortly thereafter.
These orders required the closure of all non-essential businesses in the City and required other limitation
of social interactions. All private and public schools in the City suspended in-person sessions in March
2020.

The pandemic, and the necessary public health response to it, ended the longest period of economic
expansion in U.S. history. Within the first month, over 20 million jobs were lost across the country, equal to
the total employment gains during the previous ten years. Given the rapid impact of the pandemic and the
public health response to it, national gross domestic product declined by 31.4 percent on an annualized
basis in the final quarter of FY 2019-20.

The economic impacts in San Francisco in this same quarter were profound. The San Francisco metro
division lost nearly 175,000 jobs between March and April 2020, with a modest recovery of 45,000 of these
jobs by the end of the fiscal year. Domestic and international enplanements at San Francisco International
Airport declined by 90 percent during the quarter, given national and international travel restrictions. Public
transit ridership via BART and Muni declined by 94.4 percent and 81.8 percent, respectively, during the
guarter as many employers required employees to work remotely and cultural activities in the City were
curtailed. Hotel occupancy rates declined to 21 percent from 85 percent in the same period the prior year.

This loss of economic activity resulted in significant losses of tax revenues during FY 2019-20 for
economically sensitive revenue streams. Hotel, sales, and parking taxes for the final quarter of FY 2019-
20 declined by 80 percent, 7 percent, and 22 percent, respectively, versus the previous quarter. These
losses were limited to the final quarter of the fiscal year, and were offset by less immediately impacted
General Fund revenue sources, resulting in overall General Fund revenue losses of $417 million, or 7
percent, compared to the prior fiscal year. These losses were offset by expenditure reductions and a limited
draw on the City’s discretionary reserves, implemented by the Mayor in May 2020.

The City’s final General Fund financial results for the year remain strong by historical standards, given that
these partial year revenue losses were offset by a rapidly-implemented budget adjustment plan. General
Fund cash increased by 6 percent to $3.49 billion, and total GAAP fund balances declined by a modest 1.1
percent to $2.69 billion. The City’s primary rainy day reserves, not including one-time reserves, which will
be drawn in FY 2020-21 and the years beyond as the City weathers and recovers from the pandemic,
totaled $537 million as of June 30, 2020, equal to 10 percent of City General Fund revenues.

The pandemic’s health, economic, and financial impacts have heightened during FY 2020-21. In May 2020,
the Controller's Office, the Mayor’'s Budget Office, and the Board of Supervisors Budget & Legislative
Analyst’s Office projected a combined $1.7 billion General Fund shortfall for FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22.
The Mayor proposed a budget to close this projected shortfall in August 2020. The final City budget was
adopted by the Board in September 2020. The final adopted budget for the City was predicated on a gradual
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economic and tax revenue recovery beginning in late FY 2020-21, and bridged this projected shortfall
through use of reserves, reduction in capital and other citywide spending programs, inflationary cost
controls, deferral of planned new programs, limited operating budget reductions, and voter-adoption of a
business tax measure on the November 2020 ballot. This measure was approved by the voters, as were
two other taxes that will provide some relief financial benefit to the City in years ahead.

The City’s Five-Year Financial Plan, updated in January 2021, projects a two-year General Fund shortfall
for FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-23 of $653 million, followed by lower structural shortfalls in fiscal years
thereafter as revenues are projected to rebound more robustly. The City is in the early phases of preparation
of the FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-23 budget.

The City’s Response to the Pandemic

As a combined city and county, San Francisco’s response to the pandemic has been broad and
comprehensive, focusing on increasing capacity in the City’s healthcare systems to treat those requiring
medical care, safeguarding vulnerable population with shelter, food, and other economic and social
supports, and providing new health services to contain transmission of the disease, including testing,
contact tracing, and public information services.

The Mayor activated the City’s Emergency Operations Center in February 2020, which organized the City’s
multi-agency response into a unified command structure reporting to the Mayor through a policy group that
includes the City’s Director of Emergency Management, Director of Public Health, and Director of the
Human Services Agency. This operations center, relocated to the City’s primary convention center,
organized the City’s emergency response activities, which have been supported by approximately 9,000
City employees and contractors who have been redeployed as disaster services workers.

Through this structure, the City worked to fortify and expand the City’s health systems to manage increasing
caseloads and hospitalizations associated with the pandemic. These efforts included expanded hospital
staffing, acquisition of additional space and equipment to expand capacity in the expected event of a surge
in hospitalizations, and the purchase of large inventories of protective equipment for health and other first
responder staff. Through these efforts and in coordination with private healthcare providers, the City
expanded access to surge medical beds systemwide. The City has operated several mass COVID-19
testing sites. Established in April 2020 and quickly ramping up, these sites have performed the majority of
tests performed in San Francisco. San Francisco’s overall testing rate — averaging over 3,000 daily by the
end of the fiscal year and over 8,000 by the end of the calendar year — have been the highest of any county
in California.

The City implemented new programs to support those most vulnerable to the pandemic. The City has
supported a large expansion of home-delivered and other food security programs, including support of local
non-profit food bank programs supporting 80,000 additional households and a program to provide over
140,000 meals for seniors each month from local restaurants. In an effort to safeguard vulnerable
individuals, the City has leased and staffed approximately 2,500 hotel rooms to provide temporary shelter
to homeless individuals. Additional hotels have been leased to provide an ability for others to isolate and
guarantine following exposure to the virus but without an ability to do so at home.

The City has provided various economic supports for those most impacted by the economic effects
stemming from the pandemic. These include local and state restrictions on evictions of both residential and
commercial tenants during the emergency and philanthropically funded wage stipends for low-income
workers required to quarantine following exposure. Small business loan and grant programs using local
funds have augmented larger efforts funded through two approved federal stimulus bills. To provide
financial relief to targeted businesses, various fees and taxes have been deferred and, in some limited
cases, forgiven by the City.

In total, the City’s response costs totaled $522 million in FY 2019-20 to support these and other activities,
almost entirely supported by federal and state funds that were claimed or received by the end of the fiscal
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year. These programs have continued and expanded in FY 2020-21, including a growing operational and
planning focus on vaccination of San Francisco residents.

Long-Term Initiatives

While uncertainty exists regarding the post-pandemic City economy — particularly regarding the pace of the
recovery of the hospitality industry and changes to demand for office space following a period of large-scale
telecommuting — the long-term fundamentals for the City and the Bay Area remain strong. A highly-
educated population, proximity to a large cluster of higher-education and medical institutions, availability of
capital, and a rich array of cultural and recreational resources will continue to make the City and the broader
Bay Area an attractive place to live, visit, and work.

The City is continuing to make progress on key challenges to this long-term prosperity, including improving
the availability of housing affordable to a diverse population, improving services and outcomes for homeless
individuals, and the provision of efficient transit services.

While average rents fell in San Francisco during FY 2019-20, the availability of housing affordable to the
City’s diverse population remains a central risk to the City’s prosperity and has continued to be a core policy
focus of both the Mayor and Board of Supervisors. A large amount of private construction was completed
or underway during FY 2019-20, with over 4,300 housing units completed, and nearly 9,500 additional units
under construction at the end of the fiscal year. Much of this development is shaped by major area planning
efforts that the City completed in prior years, including in the Eastern Neighborhoods, Market & Octavia,
Mission Bay, the Transit Center District, Treasure Island, the Hunters Point Shipyard, and Park Merced.

The City continues to prioritize investments in subsidized affordable housing for lower income families and
individuals. A gradually increasing share of new private housing development will have to be constructed
for low- and moderate-income households, as required by City development requirements adopted in 2017.
The City, through the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development, disbursed approximately
$291 million in loans to purchase, produce or preserve affordable housing in FY 2019-20, and is
implementing programs supported by $1.2 billion in general obligation bonds approved by the voters in
2015, 2016, and 2019. Since 2014, the City has produced or preserved approximately 9,750 units of
affordable housing and is expected to enable approximately 2,800 units to start construction in the next four
years.

Long-term challenges, including gaps in housing affordability, income inequality, and other factors, have
historically caused a large incidence of homelessness in both the State and the City. Improving services
available to this population with the goal of transitioning individuals to longer-term stability is not only key
to their individual health and safety but to the broader resident and business community in the City, who
have consistently ranked homelessness as the City’s largest challenge.

While public health risks have required the partial closure of the City’s congregate shelters during the
pandemic, the City has expanded planning and implementation efforts for new temporary and permanent
housing options for homeless individuals once the pandemic subsides. The City has announced plans to
transition approximately 2,500 homeless individuals who have been housed in temporary hotel shelter
during the pandemic into long- and mid-term housing solutions as the pandemic fades — the largest housing
placement effort in modern City history. The Mayor’s initiative to expand the City’s congregate shelter
system by 1,000 beds, or approximately 50 percent, has been delayed by the emergency but is proceeding,
most recently with the opening of a new navigation center in the Bayview neighborhood in January 2021.
These and other efforts are aided through the voter-approved bonds highlighted above and the City’s recent
successful legal defense of a business tax measure for homeless services approved by the voters in 2018.
This tax will generate approximately $350 million annually for these and other services, allowing a
significant expansion of services to improve outcomes for those experiencing homelessness.

Long-term job growth and housing scarcity will continue to place strains on the Bay Area’s transportation
networks. To meet this challenge, the City is making sizable investments to mitigate some of these
pressures by upgrading its aging transit and road infrastructure to improve public transit service and
enhance mobility for residents, businesses, and visitors. A $500 million general obligation bond, approved

iv
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by voters in November 2014, is funding an array of projects that will improve transit reliability, enhance
bicycle and pedestrian safety, and address deferred maintenance needs. Approximately $100 million of
these funds are allocated for major infrastructure improvements along Market Street, the City’s most
prominent downtown corridor and the spine of the City’s transportation network.

The City is in the final stages of constructing the Central Subway. When completed, the $1.6 billion rail
project will extend subway service in the City for the first time in decades, better connecting Chinatown, the
Financial District and the City’s convention center with the existing above ground light rail line along Third
Street. Other significant transit improvement projects in planning or construction phases include the
installation of a new rapid bus line along Van Ness Avenue and enhancements to other rail and bus rapid
transit routes serving other areas of the City. The City’s transit vehicle fleet — among the oldest in the country
when replacement plans commenced in 2017 — is now the newest and greenest. These vehicles carry 26
percent of all daily trips in the City yet generates less than one percent of the City’s transportation sector
greenhouse gas emissions.

Preliminary planning is underway for several possible regional and local transportation measures in the
coming several fiscal years, including a planned general obligation bond for the City’s transit system and
possible regional ballot measures to fund significant regional transportation network needs.

Continued progress on these three related long-term issues — housing, homelessness, and transportation
— will help to ensure the long-term prosperity of the City and those who live, work, and visit here.

OTHER INFORMATION:

San Francisco’s Budgetary Process

The budget is adopted at the account, authority or project level of expenditure within each department, and
the department, fund, account, authority or project is the legal level of budgetary control. The notes to the
budgetary comparison schedule in the required supplementary information section summarize the
budgetary roles of City officials and the timetable for their various budgetary actions according to the City
Charter.

The City has historically adopted annual budgets for all governmental funds and typically adopts project-
length budgets for capital projects and certain debt service funds. The voters adopted amendments to the
Charter in November 2009 designed to further strengthen the City’s long-range financial planning. As a
result of these changes, the City is required to adopt a “rolling” two-year budget each year unless the Board
of Supervisors authorizes a “fixed” two-year budget appropriation for a given fund, in which case
authorization occurs every two years. For the fiscal year period of 2020-21 and 2021- 22, there were four
departments on a two-year fixed budget, while the majority of the City’s budget remains on a rolling cycle.

As further required by these amendments, the Board of Supervisors and Mayor adopt a five-year financial
plan every two years. The most recent plan was adopted in March 2019. The latest plan was issued in
December 2020 and will be considered by the Board of Supervisors in coming months. Additionally, these
Charter changes provided a mechanism for the Controller to propose, and the Board to adopt, various
binding financial policies, which can only be suspended by a supermajority of the Board. Financial policies
have now been adopted under these provisions governing the City’s budget reserve practices, the use of
non-recurring revenues, and limits on the use of debt paid from the General Fund.

Internal and Budgetary Controls

In developing and evaluating the City’s accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy of
internal accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or
disposition, and (2) the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining
accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires

Vv
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estimates and judgments by management. All internal control evaluations occur within the above
framework. We believe that the City’s internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide
reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions.

The City maintains budgetary controls to ensure that legal provisions of the annual budget are in compliance
and expenditures do not exceed budgeted amounts. Controls are exercised by integrating the budgetary
accounts in fund ledgers for all budgeted funds. An encumbrance system is also used to account for
purchase orders and other contractual commitments. Encumbered balances of appropriations at year-end
are carried forward and are not reappropriated in the following year’s budget.

Independent Audit

The City’s Charter requires an annual audit of the Controller’s records. These records, represented in the
basic financial statements included in the CAFR have been audited by the nationally recognized certified
public accounting firm, Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP. The various enterprise funds, the Health Service
System, the Employees’ Retirement System, the Retiree Health Care Trust, the San Francisco County
Transportation Authority, the San Francisco Finance Corporation, and the Successor Agency to the San
Francisco Redevelopment Agency have been separately audited. The Independent Auditor’'s Report on our
current year’s financial statements is presented in the Financial Section.

Award for Financial Reporting

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) for the year ended June 30, 2019. This was the 38th consecutive year, beginning
with the year ended June 30, 1982, that the City has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded
a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
CAFR. The CAFR must satisfy both Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and applicable legal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to GFOA
to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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of the CAFR. Finally, | want to thank the Mayor and the Board of Supervisors for their leadership in planning
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Certified
Public
Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

Honorable Mayor and Members of the Board of Supervisors
City and County of San Francisco, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate discretely presented component unit and remaining fund information of the City
and County of San Francisco, California (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial
statements of the San Francisco County Transportation Authority, San Francisco International Airport (major fund), San
Francisco Water Enterprise (major fund), Hetch Hetchy Water and Power (major fund), Municipal Transportation Agency
(major fund), and San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise (major fund), which collectively represent the following
percentages of the assets, net position/fund balances, and revenues/additions of the following opinion units.

Net Position/ Revenues/
Opinion Unit Assets Fund Balances Additions
Governmental activities 1.2% 4.4% 1.7%
Business-type activities 93.1% 98.7% 74.4%
Aggregate discretely presented component
unit and remaining fund information 0.5% 0.4% 1.4%

Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar
as they relate to the amounts included for those entities, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate discretely presented component unit and remaining fund information of the City as
of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP

101 California Street, Suite 3910
San Francisco, CA 94111 www.mgocpa.com



Emphasis of a Matter

As discussed in Note 19(c) to the basic financial statements, on March 16, 2020, the City imposed a shelter-in-place order
as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. This order required the closure of all non-essential businesses in the City and
required other limitations on social interactions. The economic impacts in the City and the actions taken by the City in
response to those impacts are disclosed in the note. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Prior-Year Comparative Information

The financial statements include partial and summarized prior-year comparative information. Such information does not
include all of the information required or sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction
with the government’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019, from which such partial and summarized
information was derived.

We have previously audited the City’s 2019 financial statements, and we expressed, based on our audit and the reports
of other auditors, unmodified audit opinions on the respective financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate discretely presented component unit and remaining fund
information in our report dated December 30, 2019. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented
herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis, the schedules of the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, the schedules of changes in net
pension liability and related ratios, the schedules of changes in total pension liability and related ratios, the schedules of
employer contributions — pension plans, the schedules of changes in net other postemployment healthcare benefits
liability and related ratios, the schedules of employer contributions — other postemployment healthcare benefits plans,
and the budgetary comparison schedule — General Fund, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We and other auditors have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
City’s basic financial statements. The combining financial statements and schedules and the introductory and statistical
sections are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America by us
and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as described above, and the report of
the other auditors, the combining financial statements and schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation
to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Macfas é‘m‘ /f/ O@Me//

San Francisco, California
February 26, 2021



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Year Ended June 30, 2020

This section of the City and County of San Francisco’s (the City) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) presents a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the year ended
June 30, 2020. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with
additional information in our transmittal letter. Certain amounts presented as fiscal year 2018-19
summarized comparative financial information in the basic financial statements have been reclassified to
conform to the presentation in the fiscal year 2019-20 basic financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources at the end of the fiscal year by approximately $10.10 billion (net position). Of this balance,
$10.47 billion represents the City’s net investment in capital assets, $3.05 billion represents restricted net
position, and unrestricted net position has a deficit of $3.42 billion. The City’s total net position increased
by $496.4 million, or 5.2 percent, from the previous fiscal year. Of this amount, total net investment in capital
assets, restricted net position and unrestricted net position increased by $425.8 million or 4.2 percent, $20.8
million or 0.7 percent and $49.8 million or 1.4 percent, respectively.

The City’'s governmental funds reported total revenues of $7.18 billion, which is a $380.5 million or
5.0 percent decrease from the prior year. Within this, revenues from property taxes, business taxes, sales
and use tax, hotel room tax, parking tax, real property transfer tax, interest and investment income, rent
and concessions, charges for services, other revenues decreased by approximately $110.5 million, $85.6
million, $49.8 million, $127.4 million, $16.6 million, $29.5 million, $36.2 million, $36.5 million, $39.1 million
and $31.7 million, respectively. Governmental funds expenditures totaled $7.03 billion for this period, a
$765.3 million or 12.2 percent increase, reflecting increases in demand for governmental services of $670.4
million and an increase in capital outlay of $130.2 million, offset by decreases in debt service of
$35.3 million.

At the end of the fiscal year, total fund balances for the governmental funds amounted to $5.04 billion, a
slight decrease of $100.7 million or 2.0 percent from prior year, primarily due to increases of expenditures
over decreases in most revenues which is offset by the increase in other financing sources this year over
last year.

The City’s total short-term debt increased by $141.6 million in this fiscal year. The increase of $15.4 million
in the governmental activities was due to the issuance $195.7 million of Commercial Paper (CP) to finance
the 49 South Van Ness Avenue project, the Animal Care and Control facility project, the Housing Trust
projects and the Hall of Justice project with refinancing of CP with certificates of participation of $91.3
million, net of a total paydown of $89.0 million, of which $78.0 million CP was issued to finance the
construction of Transbay Transit Center and $11.0 million CP was issued to finance various projects. The
short-term debt in the business-type activities increased by $126.2 million mainly due to the Airport, the
Water Enterprise, Hetch Hetchy Water and Power and the Wastewater Enterprise issuing a total of $267.6
million additional short-term debt to upgrade their facilities. The San Francisco General Hospital and the
Wastewater Enterprise paid off a total of $91.7 million of CP, and the Airport refinanced $49.4 million of CP
through the issuance of long-term debt.

The City’s governmental activities long-term debt increased by $84.4 million. A total of $145.5 million in
general obligation bonds were issued to fund: improvements to the City’s parks and waterfront open spaces;
low-and middle-income housing programs; seismic strengthening and repair of the Embarcadero seawall.
The City issued $247.8 million certificates of participation to refinance the short-term debt for the 49 South
Van Ness Avenue project. The City also issued $195.3 million refunding general obligation bonds and $27.1
million refunding certificates of participation. The increase in debt was offset by $605.0 million due to
scheduled debt service payments of $565.0 million and amortization of bond premium of $40.0 million.



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2020

The business-type activities long-term debt increased by $722.8 million. The Airport issued $1.19 billion
revenue bonds, of which $896.9 million was used to finance and refinance the redevelopment of airport
terminals, construction of Courtyard 3 Connector, renovation of the International Terminal departures level
and gate enhancement, extension of AirTrain service to the long-term parking garages and $292.3 million
in revenue refunding bonds was issued to generate an economic gain. The Water Enterprise issued $656.9
million in revenue refunding bonds to generate an economic gain and obtained a loan of $73.3 million from
the State of California to fund its SF Westside Recycled Water Project. The Wastewater Enterprise drew-
down additional loans of $1.8 million to fund for various sewer system improvement projects. The Municipal
Transportation Agency obtained additional bank loan of $3.8 million for a garage renovation project. The
Port of San Francisco issued revenue refunding bonds of $23.8 million to generate an economic gain. The
Laguna Honda Hospital issued refunding certificates of participation of $89.4 million for debt service
savings. The increase in debt was offset in the amount of $1.57 billion in refunded bonds, scheduled debt
service payments and bond premium amortization.



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2020

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements. The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: (1) Government-wide
financial statements, (2) Fund financial statements, and (3) Notes to the financial statements. This report
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.
These various elements of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report are related as shown in the graphic
below.

Organization of City and County of San Francisco Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Introductory INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Section
+
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
Government -
wide Financial Fund Financial Statements
Statements
Governmental Proprietary Fiduciary
Funds Funds Funds
Statement of
net position Balance itgerg;ggﬁf Statement of
sheet P fiduciary
o Statement of net position
& ) _ revenues,
© Fslr;iggls | Statement of expenses, and
revenues, changes in Statement of
Statement of | expenditures, and | fund net position | changes in
activities changes in fund fiduciary
balances Statement of net position
cash flows
Notes to the Financial Statements
Required Supplementary Information Other Than MD&A
Information on individual nonmajor funds and other
supplementary information that is not required
+
Statistical STATISTICAL SECTION
Section




CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2020

The following table summarizes the major features of the financial statements. The overview section below
also describes the structure and contents of each of the statements in more detail.

Fund Financial Statements
Government -
wide . .
Statements Governmental Proprietary Fiduciary
Scope Entire entity The day-to-day The day-to-day Instances in which
(except operating activities of | operating activities | the City
fiduciary funds) | the City for basic of the City for administers
governmental business-type resources on
services enterprises behalf of others,
such as employee
benefits
Accounting Accrual Modified accrual Accrual accounting | Accrual accounting
basis and accounting and | accounting and and economic and economic
measurement | economic current financial resources focus resources focus;
focus resources focus | resources focus except agency
funds do not have
measurement
focus
Type of All assets, Balances of All assets, deferred | All resources held
balance deferred spendable resources | outflows of in a trustee or
information outflows of resources, agency capacity
resources, liabilities, and for others
liabilities, and deferred inflows of
deferred inflows resources, both
of resources, financial and
both financial capital, short-term
and capital, and long-term
short-term and
long-term
Type of inflow | All inflows and Near-term inflows and | All inflows and All additions and
and outflow outflows during | outflows of spendable | outflows during deductions during
information year, regardless | resources year, regardless of | the year,
of when cash is when cash is regardless of when
received or paid received or paid cash is received or
paid

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over
time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether or not the financial
position of the City is improving or deteriorating.



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2020

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods, such as
revenues pertaining to uncollected taxes and expenses pertaining to earned but unused vacation and sick
leave.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the City include public protection, public works, transportation and
commerce, human welfare and neighborhood development, community health, culture and recreation,
general administration and finance, and general City responsibilities. The business-type activities of the
City include an airport, port, transportation system (including parking), water and power operations, an
acute care hospital, a long-term care hospital, and sewer operations.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary
government), but also a legally separate development authority, the Treasure Island Development Authority
(TIDA), for which the City is financially accountable. Financial information for this component unit is reported
separately from the financial information presented for the primary government. Included within the
governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements are the San Francisco County
Transportation Authority (Transportation Authority) and San Francisco Finance Corporation. Included within
the business-type activities of the government-wide financial statements is the operation of the San
Francisco Parking Authority. Although legally separate from the City, these component units are blended
with the primary government because of their governance or financial relationships to the City. The City
also considers the Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency (Successor Agency) as a fiduciary
component unit of the City.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements are designed to report information about groupings of related accounts that
are used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.
The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into the
following three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements — i.e. most of the City’s basic
services are reported in governmental funds. These statements, however, focus on (1) how cash and other
financial assets can readily be converted to available resources and (2) the balances left at year end that
are available and the constraints for spending. Such information may be useful in determining what financial
resources are available in the near future to finance the City’s programs.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information
presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers
may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the
governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds
and governmental activities.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2020

The City maintains several individual governmental funds organized according to their type (special
revenue, debt service, capital projects and permanent funds). Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, which is considered to be a major fund. Data from the
remaining governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data
for each of the nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in
this report.

Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are generally used to account for services for which the City charges
customers — either outside customers, or internal units or departments of the City. Proprietary funds provide
the same type of information as shown in the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.
The City maintains the following two types of proprietary funds:

e Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for the operations of
the San Francisco International Airport (SFO or Airport), San Francisco Water Enterprise (Water),
Hetch Hetchy Water and Power (Hetch Hetchy), San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency
(SFMTA), San Francisco General Hospital (SFGH), San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise
(Wastewater), Port of San Francisco (Port), and the Laguna Honda Hospital (LHH), all of which are
considered to be major funds of the City.

e Internal Service funds are used to report activities that provide supplies and services for certain City
programs and activities. The City uses internal service funds to account for its fleet of vehicles,
management information and telecommunication services, printing and mail services, and for lease-
purchases of equipment by the San Francisco Finance Corporation. Because these services
predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included
within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. The internal service funds
are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.
Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the City. The City employees’ pension and health plans, retirees’ health care, the Successor Agency, the
external portion of the Treasurer’s Office investment pool, and the agency funds are reported under the
fiduciary funds. Since the resources of these funds are not available to support the City’s own programs,
they are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements. The accounting used for fiduciary funds
is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report presents certain required
supplementary information concerning the City’s net pension liability, pension contributions, net OPEB
liability, and OPEB contributions.

The City adopts a rolling two-year budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison schedule has been
provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.
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Combining Statements and Schedules

The combining statements and schedules referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental
funds, internal service funds, and fiduciary funds are presented immediately following the required
supplementary information.

Condensed Statement of Net Position
(in thousands)

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Assets:
Current and other assets.........cccoeevreeene. $ 8,377,481 $7,301,821 $ 6,477516 $ 6,575,434 $14,854997 $13,877,255
Capital assets........coevunne 6,702,757 6,155,064 22,089,466 20,689,646 28,792,223 26,844,710
Total @SSetS ..o 15,080,238 13,456,885 28,566,982 27,265,080 43,647,220 40,721,965

Deferred outflows of resources: 1,161,466 996,754 1,103,005 947,283 2,264,471 1,944,037
Liabilities:
Current liabilities........cccoceeeeerecieieene 3,214,799 2,179,762 2,395,258 2,148,534 5,610,057 4,328,296
Noncurrent liabilities........ccoovvvvviccinnes 9,149,846 8,742,967 19,797,681 18,872,584 28,947,527 27,615,551

Total liabilitieS......ccoovvvvrrreececenes 12,364,645 10,922,729 22,192,939 21,021,118 34,557,584 31,943,847
Deferred inflows of resources: 743,437 629,419 512,075 490,524 1,255,512 1,119,943
Net position:
Netinvestmentin capital assets *........... 3,853,271 3,681,341 7,013,098 6,764,333 10,474,620 10,048,870
Restricted * 2,118,598 2,024,387 956,701 1,053,773 3,048,043 3,027,217
Unrestricted (deficit) *......cccoooeeeiieeninennes (2,838,247)  (2,804,237) (1,004,826) (1,117,385) (3,424,068) (3,473,875)

Total Net POSItioN.......cccoevveeverencccieene $ 3,133,622 $2,901,491 $ 6,964,973 $ 6,700,721 $10,098,595 $ 9,602,212

* See Note 10(d) to the basic financial statements.

Analysis of Net Position

The City’s total net position, which may serve as a useful indicator of the government’s financial position,
was $10.10 billion at the end of fiscal year 2019-20, a 5.2 percent increase over the prior year. The City’s
governmental activities account for $3.13 billion of this total and $6.97 billion stem from its business-type
activities.

The largest portion of the City’s net position is the $10.47 billion in net investment in capital assets (e.g.
land, buildings, and equipment). This reflects a $425.8 million or 4.2 percent increase over the prior year
and is due to the growth seen in the governmental activities of $171.9 million and an overall increase in
business-type activities, highlighted by an increase of $296.5 million at SFMTA and $49.6 million at
Wastewater Enterprise offset by decreases of $79.5 million at Airport and $35.6 million at Water Enterprise
respectively. Since the City uses capital assets to provide services, these assets are not available for future
spending. Further, the resources required to pay the outstanding debt must come from other sources since
the capital assets themselves cannot be liquidated to pay that liability.

Another portion of the City’s net position is the $3.05 billion that represents restricted resources that are
subject to external limitations regarding their use. The remaining portion of total net position is a deficit of
$3.42 billion, which consists of a $2.84 billion deficit in governmental activities and $1.0 billion deficit in
business-type activities. The governmental activities and business-type activities deficit is largely due to
recording liabilities related to net pension and net other postemployment benefits (see Note 9). The
governmental activities deficit also included $419.0 million in long-term bonds liabilities that fund the LHH
rebuild project, certain park facilities and Embarcadero seawall earthquake safety projects at the Port,
improvement projects for reliable emergency water supply for the Water Enterprise, and road paving and
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street safety in SFMTA (see Note 10(d)). The business-type activities deficit also includes structural
operating losses from SFGH and LHH subsidized by the General Fund.

Condensed Statement of Activities
(in thousands)

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges fOr SEIVICES ..ottt $ 854868 $ 815176 $3,884,412 $3,840,617 $ 4,739,280 $ 4,655,793
Operating grants and contributions 1,518,051 1,392,516 455,673 251,757 1,973,724 1,644,273
Capital grants and contributions 146,400 233,184 361,266 467,069 507,666 700,253
General revenues:
Property taxXes. ... 2,733,334 2,581,308 - - 2,733,334 2,581,308
Business taxes..... 833,931 919,552 - - 833,931 919,552
Sales and use tax. 279,453 329,296 - - 279,453 329,296
Hotel room tax.. 280,970 408,348 - - 280,970 408,348
Utility users tax. 94,231 93,918 - - 94,231 93,918

Other local taxes....... 474,859 515,435

- - 474,859 515,435
Interest and investmentincome. 142,181 178,350 151,319 182,666 293,500 361,016
Other..... 63,552 88,788 245,466 237,045 309,018 325,833
TOtAl FEVENUES ...ttt 7,421,830 7,555,871 5,098,136 4,979,154 12,519,966 12,535,025
Expenses
PUDIIC PrOtECHON ..ottt 1,661,262 1,496,341 - - 1,661,262 1,496,341
Public works, transportation
AN COMMEICE.....viiiiceecie e 362,133 331,717 - - 362,133 331,717
Human welfare and
neighborhood development 2,137,968 1,720,425 - - 2,137,968 1,720,425
Community health 1,148,208 960,422 - - 1,148,208 960,422
Culture and recreation 519,015 594,219 - - 519,015 594,219
General administration and finance... 416,370 330,358 - - 416,370 330,358
General City responsibilities............... 119,693 156,907 - - 119,693 156,907
Unallocated Interest on long-term debt. 145,600 153,220 - - 145,600 153,220
- - 1,344,734 1,067,265 1,344,734 1,067,265
- - 1,438,417 1,304,358 1,438,417 1,304,358
- - 131,884 123,116 131,884 123,116
- - 576,140 536,480 576,140 536,480
- - 392,669 314,471 392,669 314,471
- - 1,332,648 1,236,823 1,332,648 1,236,823
- - 296,842 304,010 296,842 304,010
TOtal EXPENSES ...ttt s 6,510,249 5,743,609 5,513,334 4,886,523 12,023,583 10,630,132
Increase/(decrease) in net position
before transfers and special items.......cccccevvrvvccccenenenn. 911,581 1,812,262 (415,198) 92,631 496,383 1,904,893
TIANSTEIS oo (679,450) (802,748) 679,450 802,748 - -
Special items:
Receipt of South Beach Harbor operations - - 18,340 - 18,340
Change in net position 232,131 1,009,514 264,252 913,719 496,383 1,923,233
Net position at beginning of year, as restated 2,901,491 1,891,977 6,700,721 5,787,002 9,602,212 7,678,979

Net position at end of year. $ 3,133,622 $ 2901491 $6,964973 $6,700,721 $ 10,098,595 $9,602,212

Analysis of Changes in Net Position

The City’s change in net position increased by $496.4 million in fiscal year 2019-20, a 5.2 percent increase
from the prior fiscal year, as noted above. The increase in the change in net position was due to a $232.1
million increase from governmental activities and a $264.3 million increase from business-type activities.

The City’s governmental activities experienced a $134.0 million or 1.8 percent decline in total revenues,
while total expenses increased by $766.6 million or 13.3 percent this fiscal year. Business-type activities
revenues increased by $119.0 million or 2.4 percent, and total expenses also increased by $626.8 million,
or 12.8 percent. The net transfer to business-type activities decreased by $123.3 million. The major
components of increased revenue Citywide are increased operating grants and contributions of $329.5
million, property taxes of $152.0 million and charges for services of $83.5 million, offset by decrease of
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capital grants and contributions of $192.6 million, hotel room tax of $127.4 million and business taxes of
$85.6 million. Discussion of these and other changes is presented in the governmental activities and
business-type activities sections that follow.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities

$2,500 1 mExpenses
OProgram Revenues
$2,000
% $1,500
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Governmental Activities. Governmental activities increased the City’s total net position by approximately
$232.1 million. Key factors contributing to this change are discussed below.

Overall, total revenues from governmental activities were $7.42 billion, a $134.0 million or 1.8 percent
decrease over the prior year. For the same period, expense totaled $6.51 billion before transfers of $679.5

million.
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Property tax revenues increased by $152.0 million or 5.9 percent due in large part to the increased
recognition of $135.7 million secured and unsecured property tax revenues, $28.3 million redevelopment
property tax increment and $23.5 million property tax in lieu of vehicle license fee. This growth was partly
offset by decreased recognition of $37.9 million Excess Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF)
in the current fiscal year.

The COVID-19 pandemic adversely impacted the City’s remaining general revenue streams. Business tax
reduced by $85.6 million or 9.3 percent driven by the economy downturn. In response to the pandemic,
the City delayed both business registration fees and the first quarter business tax payment for small
business. In addition, $36.4 million business tax collected was deferred due to pending litigation. Revenues
from sales and use tax and hotel room taxes dropped by $177.2 million over the prior year. Sales and use
tax decreased by $49.8 million or 15.1 percent primarily due to the emergency declaration and order to
close non-essential businesses, including restaurants, and retail establishments as well as a significant
decrease in visitors. Hotel room tax was hard hit with a fall of $127.4 million or 31.2 percent, due to travel
restrictions and reduction both in international and domestic flights and voluntarily conference cancellations
since March 2020. The hotel occupancy rate hit a record low of 15.5 percent in April and the revenue per
available room (RevPAR) which is a function of changes in occupancy, average daily room rate and room
supply, declined drastically to $15.9, or a decrease of 92.7 percent compared to last year's same period.
Hotel tax revenue decreased by 24.3 percent and 49.7 percent in March and April, respectively. Since
then, occupancy rates and RevPAR have been inching up month by month. In June, the occupancy rate
was 27.4 percent, 68.4 percent lower than last June, and RevPAR was $30.7, 86.7 percent lower than last
June. General Fund hotel tax collected after April decreased by 99.8 percent from the same period last
year.

Other local taxes also decreased by $40.6 million or 7.9 percent. The real property transfer tax, which is
highly sensitive to economic cycles and interest rates, decreased both in number and value of commercial
real estate transactions over $10 million or more due to economic uncertainty related to the pandemic and
was significantly depressed in the second half of the year. This revenue stream ended with $29.5 million
less than the prior year. Parking tax also shrank by $16.5 million from less vehicle movement within the
City due to ban on large gathering and shelter-in-place order beginning in March 2020.

Total grants and contributions increased by $38.8 million or 2.4 percent. The capital grants and
contributions decreased by $86.8 million primarily due to the total land donated to the City was $63.8 million
this fiscal year whereas prior year’s total was $148.7 million which composed of the Moscone Convention
Center North and South buildings and land parcels. The operating grants and contributions, however,
increased by $125.5 million primarily due to revenues from the new CARES Act and cost recovery from
FEMA for COVID response.

Total charges for services increased $39.7 million or 4.9 percent largely from an increased $52.3 million in
loans previously considered uncollectible, partly offset by decline in other charges including licenses and
permits, rents and concessions, fines and forfeitures due to reduced service demands and the shelter-in-
place order during the pandemic.

Interest and investment income revenue decreased by $36.2 million or 20.3 percent, primarily due to the
lower interest rates during the year which worsened at year end due to the pandemic. The adverse economy
impacted the Pool’s investment earnings as well as the valuation of City’s investment portfolio resulting in
lower interest and investment earnings.

Net transfers from the governmental activities to business-type activities were $679.5 million, a $123.3
million or 15.4 percent decrease from the prior year. The General Fund baseline transfer to SFMTA
decreased $53.5 million primarily due to decrease in property taxes, including ERAF revenue. General
Fund transfer to General Hospital and Laguna Honda also decreased by $47.7 million and $44.2 million,
respectively, due to reduced needs for General Fund support. In addition, transfer from San Francisco
County Transportation Funds to SFMTA to support various capital projects dropped by $46.5 million due to
reduced capital activities. These decreases were partly offset by increased transfer of $51.9 million of the
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proceeds of 2012 San Francisco Clean and Safe Neighborhood Parks Bonds and 2018 Embarcadero
Seawall Earthquake Safety Bonds for Port’s waterfront projects.

The increase of total governmental expenses of $766.6 million, or 13.3 percent, was primarily due to a
growth in salaries and fringe benefits of $215.6 million and pension and OPEB expenses, net of deferred
contributions, resulting from assumption changes, actuarial experience and contributions of $210.4 million.
In response to the pandemic, the City had a combined increase in aid and grant payments of $182.5 million
mainly administered by Human Services Agency, Department of Children, Youth & Families and
Department of Homelessness Services. Department of Public Health had increased non-professional
services and medical material and supplies for a total of $72.3 million. As a result of increases in City loans
issued by the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Office of Economic and Workforce Development with major
funding from General Obligation Bonds, developer’s fees and grants, expenses for related loan allowances
also grew by $153.7 million.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-Type Activities
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Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $264.3 million and key factors contributing
to this increase are as follows:

The San Francisco International Airport had a decrease in net position at fiscal year end of
$216.9 million, compared to a $91.8 million increase in the prior year, a $308.7 million difference.
Operating revenues totaled $943.9 million for fiscal year 2019-20, a decrease of $36.6 million or 3.7
percent over the prior year and included an increase of $47.8 million in aviation primarily due to changes
in the unearned aviation revenue adjustment, offset by decreases of $19.3 million in rents and
concessions, $52.8 million in parking and transportation, and $12.3 million in other revenues, reflecting
traffic decline from March 2020 to June 2020 with the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic. For the same
period, the Airport’s operating expenses increased by $167.1 million, or 21.9 percent, for a net operating
income of $12.8 million for the period. Net nonoperating activities saw a deficit of $245.3 million versus
$99.1 million deficit in the prior year, a $146.2 million increase. The increase of $167.1 million in
operating expenses is primarily due to increases in personal services of $66.8 million due to an increase
in pension expenses and cost of living adjustments, depreciation and amortization of $43.3 million due
to higher capital assets, and other operating expenses of $27.1 million. The increase of $146.2 million
in nonoperating activities is due to a decrease in other nonoperating revenues of $31.1 million, and
increases in other nonoperating expenses of $39.2 million, interest and investment income of $4.7
million primarily due to the net effect of $14.6 million of investment fair value adjustments and an actual
investment income increase of $9.9 million, and interest expense of $71.2 million. Capital contributions
increased by $25.7 million due to an increase in federal grants received for the Airport Improvement
Program, TSA Checked Baggage Recapitalization Construction Project, and the Association of Bay
Area Governments Wastewater Treatment Plant.

The City’s Water Enterprise, the third largest such entity in California, reported an increase in net
position of $98.9 million at the end of fiscal year 2019-20, compared to an increase of $52.6 million at
the end of the previous year, a $46.3 million difference. Operating revenues totaled $583.4 million,
operating expenses totaled $398.1 million, nonoperating activities totaled a net expense of $72.8 million
and the net decrease from transfers was $13.6 million. Compared to the prior year, operating revenues
increased $41.0 million which was entirely due to charges for services cause by an adopted rate
increase of 8.0 percent for retail customers beginning July 1, 2019 coupled with a 5.7 percent increase
in consumption by wholesale customers. The enterprise reported a total increase in operating expenses
of $41.0 million in fiscal year 2019-20 mostly due to a $21.4 million increase in depreciation and
amortization due to additional capital assets placed into service in the prior year, an $8.4 million
increase in general and administrative expense and an $8.3 million increase in personal services.
Nonoperating activity increased by $40.1 million primarily due to a $63.6 million one-time gain from the
property transfer of 639 Bryant Street for 2000 Marin Street offset by an increase of $13.2 million in
interest expense mainly due to reduced interest capitalization for capital projects.

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power and CleanPowerSF ended fiscal year 2019-20 with a net position
increase of $80.9 million, compared to a $79.6 million increase the prior year, a difference of $1.3
million. This change consisted of a decrease in operating income of $2.9 million, an increase in net
nonoperating activities of $14.7 million, and a decrease in transfers from the City of $10.5 million. This
enterprise consists of three segments: Hetchy Water upcountry operations and water system, which
reported a $9.9 million increase in change in net position, Hetchy Power (also known as the Power
Enterprise), which reported a $19.9 million increase in change in net position, and CleanPowerSF,
which reported a $51.1 million increase in net position. Hetchy Water operating revenues increased by
$0.9 million, mainly due to an increase of $0.9 million in water assessment fees from the Water
Enterprise while operating expenses decreased by $5.4 million mainly due to a decrease in capital
project spending. Hetchy Power’s operating revenues decreased by $2.7 million mostly due to a
decrease in the sale of power due to COVID-19. On the operating expenses side, Hetchy Power
reported an increase of $25.4 million mainly attributed to an increase of $16.1 million in other operating
expenses mainly due to lower capitalization of capital project spending, $3.1 million in personnel
services resulting from cost of living adjustments, higher pension obligations based on actuarial reports
and increased personnel and fringe benefit costs, $1.7 million in contractual services mainly for
equipment maintenance and property rent, $1.6 million in materials and supplies mainly explained by
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prior year recognition of material and supplies to inventory for the in-city warehouse, $1.4 million in
purchased electricity and transmission, distribution and other power costs mainly due to wheeling
charge rate increase, $1.2 million in depreciation and amortization related to additional building,
structure and equipment placed in service, and $0.7 million in general and administrative expenses
mainly due to judgments and claims based on actuarial estimates. These increases were offset by a
decrease of $0.4 million in services of other departments mainly due to legal services provided by City
Attorney. Interest expenses were $2.7 million, a decrease of $0.2 million mainly due to higher
capitalized interest. CleanPowerSF’s operating revenues increased by $77.6 million mostly due to
$74.1 million increased electricity sales to retail and commercial customers. Operating expenses for
CleanPowerSF increased by $58.7 million mainly due to $51.9 million in purchased electricity and
transmission, distribution and other power costs as a result of higher electricity sales, $3.3 million in
personal services mainly due to higher salaries and fringe benefits, $2.8 million in professional and
contractual services mainly from services provided by Calpine Energy Solution for customer billings,
and $1.1 million in general and administrative mainly from increased taxes, license, and permits fees.
These increases were offset by a decrease of $0.4 million in services provided by other departments
and other items.

The City’s Wastewater Enterprise’s net position increased by $63.8 million, compared to a $55.0 million
increase in the prior year, a $8.8 million change. Operating revenues increased by $13.0 million mainly
due to a $14.0 million increase in charges for services mainly due to an average 7 percent adopted
rate increase, offset by a 0.9 percent decrease in sanitary flow. Operating expenses increased by $2.4
million mainly due to $10.3 million increases in personal services mainly due to higher salaries and
benefits, $2.9 million in depreciation expense due to more capitalized assets put in service, $0.7 million
in services provided by other departments mainly for legal services, street cleaning, neighborhood
beautification, and risk management services, and $0.3 million in contractual services mainly due
professional and specialized services. These increases were offset by a decrease of $10.9 million in
general and administrative and other expenses mainly due to higher capitalization of capital project
spending, and $0.9 million in materials and supplies due to water sewage treatment supplies for
Bayside Operations. Net nonoperating activities decreased by $4.6 million due mainly to lower interest
income.

The Port ended fiscal year 2019-20 with a net position increase of $40.7 million, $12.0 million greater
than the $28.7 million increase in the previous year, a $12.0 million difference. The Port is responsible
for seven and one-half miles of waterfront property and its revenue is derived primarily from property
rentals to commercial and industrial enterprises and a diverse mix of maritime operations. In fiscal year
2019-20, operating revenues decreased by $13.1 million, principally due to one-time participation
income of $10.3 million from the sale and transfer of the Ferry Building master lease in the prior year,
and other decreases in lease revenue reflecting weakness in the local economy impacted by the
COVID-19 pandemic in 2020. Operating expenses increased $15.1 million over the prior year. This was
primarily due in part to increases of $9.8 million in contractual services mainly related to the Seawall
project and $4.7 million in personal services for increased hiring, and higher salaries. Also, transfers in
increased $51.9 million mainly due to the allocation of proceeds from City general obligation bonds to
support the Seawall Earthquake Safety and Disaster Prevention Program.

The SFMTA had an increase in net position of $214.7 million for fiscal year 2019-20, compared to an
increase of $527.6 million in the prior year, a $312.9 million change. SFMTA's total operating revenues
were $390.3 million, while total operating expenses reached $1.40 billion. Operating revenues
decreased by $114.9 million compared to the prior year and is mainly due to decreases in fare
collections by $42.8 million as well as parking and transportation by $55.1 million. Decrease in
passenger fares was mainly due to significant decline in ridership caused by severe impacts of the
COVID-19 pandemic. Parking revenues were heavily impacted by the quarantine and shelter in place
orders causing major decrease in collections as a result of decline in parking activities. Operating
expenses increased by $131.9 million, primarily due to increases in personal services by $73.4 million
attributable mainly to increase in cost-of-living adjustments and retirement costs, general and
administrative costs by $30.7 million mainly due to an increase in claims, and depreciation and
amortization by $15.7 million due to an increase in assets capitalized. Net nonoperating activities
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increased by $162.6 million, mainly from a $198.2 million increase in federal grants including CARES
Act grants, offset by decreases in state and other operating grants, interest and investment income,
and an increase in interest expense. Capital contributions decreased by $130.6 million due to decrease
in capital expenditures incurred mostly related to Trolley Vehicles and New Light Rail Vehicles
procurement. Transfers in decreased by $98.2 million mainly due to a decrease of $53.5 million from
the City’s General Fund for revenue baseline subsidy, in lieu of parking tax and population-based
allocation.

e LHH, the City’s skilled nursing care hospital, had an increase in net position of $8.7 million at the end
of fiscal year 2019-20, compared to an increase of $62.3 million at the end of the previous year, a $53.6
million difference. The LHH’s loss before transfers for the year was $69.0 million versus a loss of $71.1
million for the prior year. This change of $2.1 million was mostly due to a $14.1 million increase in
operating revenues, a $13.5 million increase in operating expenses, and a $1.5 million increase in net
nonoperating activities. Net transfers decreased by approximately $55.7 million, due to a $45.3 million
decrease in transfers in and a $10.4 million increase in transfers out.

e SFGH, the City’s acute care hospital, ended fiscal year 2019-20 with a net position decrease of
$26.5 million, compared to an increase of $16.0 million the prior year, a $42.5 million change. Operating
revenues decreased $245.5 million from prior year, mainly due to a $269.6 million decrease in net
patient service revenue. Operating expenses increased approximately $84.2 million, mainly due to a
$54.0 million increase in personal services, $19.3 million increase in contractual services and a $19.3
million increase in materials and supplies expense, offset by a $7.7 million decrease in other operating
expenses. Net nonoperating activities increased $11.7 million, mainly due to an increase in federal
operating grants. Net transfers decreased by approximately $34.4 million, due to a $46.8 million
decrease in transfers in and a $12.4 million decrease in transfers out.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds statements is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of resources available for future spending. Such information is useful in assessing
the City’s financing requirements. In particular, unrestricted fund balance may serve as a useful measure
of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. Types of governmental
funds reported by the City include the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, Capital
Project Funds, and the Permanent Fund.

At the end of fiscal year 2019-20, the City governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $5.04
billion, a decrease of $100.7 million or 2.0 percent over the prior year. Of the total fund balances, $1.71
billion is assigned and $509.7 million is unassigned. The total of $2.22 billion or 44.0 percent of the total
fund balances constitutes the fund balances that are accessible to meet the City’s needs. Within these
fund balance classifications, the General Fund had an assigned fund balance of $1.58 billion. The
remainder of the governmental fund balances includes $1.4 million nonspendable for items that are not
expected to be converted to cash such as advances and long-term loans, $2.46 billion restricted for
programs at various levels and $363.4 million committed for other reserves.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. As a measure of liquidity, both the sum of assigned
and unassigned fund balances and total fund balance can be compared to total fund expenditures. As of
the end of the fiscal year, assigned and unassigned fund balances totaled $2.09 billion while total fund
balance was $2.69 billion. Combined assigned and unassigned fund balances represent 47.2 percent of
total expenditures, while total fund balance represents 60.6 percent of total expenditures. For the year, the
General Fund'’s total revenues exceeded expenditures by $1.04 billion, before transfers and other items of
$1.07 billion, resulting in total fund balance decreasing by $31.1 million. Overall, the City has significant
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decline in most revenue sources, particularly in property taxes due to reduced recognition of 56.5 percent
of excess ERAF revenues this fiscal year; in hotel room tax, business tax, interest and investment income,
state grants and subventions, and charges for services which were severely impacted by the shelter-in-
place order, travel restrictions, closure of non-essential business, cancellation of conferences and events
and surging unemployment rate due to the pandemic from March through June. Also, in response to the
pandemic, the City allowed to delay business registration fees and first quarter business tax payment for
small businesses and resulted in the second highest decline in revenues. These decreases were slightly
offset by an increase of $126.0 million federal grants primarily driven by the CARES Act revenues and cost
recovery from FEMA for COVID-19 response and the remaining from slight growth of welfare aid programs.
Other revenues which comprised of sale of development rights and in-kind donations also has a slight
increase of $16.0 million. The net result was a decrease in fund balance this fiscal year.

Proprietary Funds

The City’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the business-type
activities section of the government-wide financial statements but with some additional detail.

At the end of fiscal year 2019-20, the unrestricted net position for the proprietary funds was as follows:
Airport: $6.0 million, Water Enterprise: $54.1 million, Hetch Hetchy Water and Power: $278.1 million,
Wastewater Enterprise: $108.4 million, and the Port: $94.4 million. In addition, the following funds had net
deficits in unrestricted net position: SFMTA: $604.4 million, San Francisco General Hospital: $647.6 million,
and Laguna Honda Hospital: $294.0 million.

The following table shows actual revenues, expenses and the results of operations for the current fiscal
year in the City’s proprietary funds (in thousands). This shows that the total net position for these funds
increased by approximately $264.3 million due to the current year financial activities. Reasons for this
change are discussed in the previous section on the City’s business-type activities.

Non-

Operating Operating Capital Interfund

Operating Operating Income Revenues Contributions Transfers, Change In
Revenues Expenses (Loss) (Expense) and Others Net Net Position
ATTPOM..eeiiiieieeee s $ 943879 % 931,072  $ 12,807 $ (245280) $ 49,292 $ (33,743) $ (216,924)
Water......... 583,351 398,117 185,234 (72,772) - (13,585) 98,877
Hetch Hetchy.........ccccevviinnaee 421,284 389,026 32,258 34,665 - 13,968 80,891
Municipal Transportation Agency........... 390,285 1,430,606 (1,040,321) 410,069 311,388 533,569 214,705
General Hospital...........cooevenicinieininns 893,277 1,045,321 (152,044) 75,114 - 50,480 (26,450)
Wastewater Enterprise 344,128 262,259 81,869 (16,888) - (1,188) 63,793
PO . 108,863 127,215 (18,352) 6,174 586 52,246 40,654
Laguna Honda Hospital.... 199,345 281,638 (82,293) 13,296 - 77,703 8,706
TOtAl s $ 3884412 $ 4865254 $ (980842) $ 204378 $ 361266 $ 679450 $ 264,252

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City’s final budget differs from the original budget in that it contains carry-forward appropriations for
various programs and projects, and supplemental appropriations approved during the fiscal year.

During the year, actual revenues and other resources were lower than the final budget by $260.1 million,
primarily in tax revenues. The City realized $115.9 million and $38.5 million revenues above budget in
property tax and real property transfer tax, respectively, which were offset by lower than budgeted revenues
of $228.2 million, $136.9 million, $23.9 million, $13.5 million and $7.8 million in business taxes, hotel room
tax, sales and use tax, parking tax and other local taxes, respectively. Property tax was higher due to
increases in secured and unsecured property tax revenues as well as recognition of excess ERAF reserve
from fiscal year 2017-18. The property transfer tax also had an unexpectedly strong first half of fiscal year
2019-20 which was partly offset by weakness in the second half of fiscal year 2019-20. However, the
favorable budget variances were overtaken by unfavorable variances in the remaining taxes, particularly,
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business and hotel room tax due to shelter-in-place and closure of non-essential businesses attributed by
the pandemic.

The City also realized $17.4 million of other resources, mainly from sale of development rights and in-kind
contribution, and $9.3 million interest revenues, which were higher than budget but offset by $12.4 million,
$5.6 million and $5.2 million revenues lower than budget in charges for services, rents and concessions
and licenses, permits and franchises, respectively. The unfavorable variances were largely due to
cancellation of events, and restrictions imposed by the shelter-in-place order. Federal grants revenues were
also lower than budget by $14.2 million and partly offset by combined increase of state and local grants
and subventions of $10.6 million.

Differences between the final budget and the actual (budgetary basis) expenditures resulted in $121.0
million in expenditure savings. Highlights of the variances include:

e $34.7 million budgetary reserve and designations, of which $16.2 million was for litigation, $10.4 million
for Department of Public Health and $8.1 million for salaries and benefits.

e $27.6 million savings for general administration and finance, of which $21.9 million in salaries and fringe
and $11.4 million in professional services and partly offset by less than budgeted expenditure
recoveries from other city departments for $8.9 million.

e $17.0 million savings in human welfare and neighborhood development largely due to reduced
professional and community-based organization services for the Homelessness and Supporting
Housing and reduced loans issued by the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development.

¢ $14.3 million savings in public protection mainly from salaries and fringe for the operations of Juvenile
Hall, Police and Police Accountability Department.

e $13.5 million saving in public works, transportation and commerce, primarily in the Office of Business
and Economic Development with reduced loans and City grants issued and lower capital outlay
expenditures due to the pandemic.

¢ $7.9 million savings in general responsibilities are mainly in community-based organization services
and internal audits and $6 million salaries and mandatory fringe benefits as well as reduced
departmental services in culture and recreation.

The combined effect of revenue lower than budget and savings in expenditures was a budgetary fund
balance available for subsequent year appropriation of $896.2 million at the end of fiscal year 2019-20.
The City’s fiscal year 2020-21 and 2021-22 Adopted Original Budget assumed an available balance of
$370.4 million fully appropriated in fiscal year 2020-21 and fiscal year 2021-22 and contingency reserves
of $507.4 million, leaving $18.3 million available for future appropriations (see also Note to the Required
Supplementary Information for additional budgetary fund balance details).

Capital Assets
The City’s capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2020, increased

by $1.95 billion, 7.3 percent, to $28.79 billion (net of accumulated depreciation). Capital assets include land,
buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, streets, bridges, and
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intangible assets. Governmental activities contributed $547.7 million or 28.1 percent to this total while $1.40
billion or 71.9 percent was from business-type activities. Details are shown in the table below.

Business-type

Governmental Activities Activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Land.......cooveeviiiiinien $ 673,347 $ 519,234 $ 341,624 $ 257,803 $ 1,014971 $ 777,037
Construction in progress......... 780,833 684,859 5,179,163 5,851,307 5,959,996 6,536,166
Facilities and improvements.... 4,050,395 3,850,118 13,537,465 11,916,790 17,587,860 15,766,908
Machinery and equipment....... 177,781 182,081 2,078,484 1,755,125 2,256,265 1,937,206
Infrastructure............ccoeevueennn. 898,648 823,330 904,131 856,139 1,802,779 1,679,469
Intangible assets.................... 121,753 95,442 48,599 52,482 170,352 147,924

Total........cooiiiits $ 6,702,757 $6,155,064 $ 22,089,466 $ 20,689,646 $ 28,792,223 $ 26,844,710

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

Under governmental activities, net capital assets increased by $547.7 million or 8.9 percent. About
$377.4 million worth of construction in progress work was substantially completed and capitalized
as facilities and improvements and infrastructure. Of the completed projects, about $259.7 million
was in the 1500 Mission Street Office Building, $32.2 million in Electronic Health Record System,
$25.8 million in 3rd Street Bridge Structural, $11.1 million for the 440 Turk Street and $10.2 million
in Geneva Car Barn. The remaining completed projects are mainly public works.

The Water Enterprise’s net capital assets increased by $141.9 million or 2.6 percent, reflecting an
increase in construction and capital improvement activities. Major additions to construction in
progress included Recycled Water Project, San Andreas Pipeline No. 2 Replacement, Watershed
and Environmental Improvement Program, Regional Groundwater Storage & Recovery, Calaveras
Dam Replacement, Water Main Replacement - Van Ness Avenue/Market/Lombard Streets, and
other upgrade and improvement programs. As of June 30, 2020, Water Enterprise’s Water System
Improvement Program was 99.0 percent completed with $4.8 billion of project appropriations
expended. The program consists of 35 local projects located within San Francisco and 52 regional
projects spread over seven different counties from the Sierra Foothills to San Francisco. As of June
30, 2020, 35 local projects were completed, and the completion date was June 3, 2020. For regional
projects, 42 are completed and the expected completion date is May 2023.

SFMTA'’s net capital assets increased by $287.0 million or 6.0 percent mainly from Central Subway
Project construction in progress of $184.0 million and for the procurement of new revenue vehicles
of $100.0 million. The remaining $3.0 million was mainly from Muni Forward program and facility
upgrades. Construction in progress costs of $545.5 million were incurred for the New Central
Subway Project, Muni Forward program, facility upgrades, and trolley bus procurement. Facilities
and improvements cost totaling $41.8 million was incurred in fiscal year 2019-20 for Muni Forward
program, Islais Creek annex renovation projects, and facility upgrades for a total of $38.4 million.
The remaining $3.4 million is for a building transferred from the Animal Care and Control
department. Equipment cost of $145 million was incurred during the fiscal year mainly for
procurement of trolley buses, light rail vehicles and hybrid motor buses, rail replacement, and
streetcar renovation. Infrastructure of $88.2 million was incurred during the fiscal year for facility
upgrades, traffic signals, street improvements, and Muni Forward program.

Laguna Honda Hospital's net capital assets decreased by $11.1 million or 2.3 percent due primarily
to higher depreciation expense and lower new construction in progress due to the completion of
the new hospital facility in March 2014. LHH provides 780 resident beds in three state of the art
buildings on LHH’s 62-acre campus. The 500,000 square foot facility received silver certification by
the U.S. Green Building Council’'s Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED)
program, becoming the first green-certified hospital in California.
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e SFGH'’s net capital assets decreased by $17.7 million or 13.6 percent due to primarily higher
depreciation expense and lower new construction in progress due to the completion of the
Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital rebuild in fiscal year 2015-16.

e The Wastewater Enterprise net capital assets reported an increase of $340.5 million or 12.5 percent
reflecting an increase in construction and capital improvement activities. The Sewer System
Improvement Program (SSIP) includes three phases over 20 years to improve the existing
wastewater system. As of June 30, 2020, 32 projects were completed, with 15 projects in
preconstruction phase, 17 projects in construction phase, and 6 projects in close-out phase. The
Southeast Plant (SEP) Existing Digester Gas Handling Improvements was completed on February
28, 2020. The goal of this project is to cost effectively integrate the digester gas handling system
at the SEP, improve the reliability of the cogeneration facility, and provide backup fuel source for
the boilers. The SEP New Headworks Facility-SCOPE II.A is on-going construction.

e Hetch Hetchy’s net capital assets increased by $55.6 million or 10.1 percent to $606.2 million
primarily due to additions to construction in progress, facilities, improvements, machinery, and
equipment for Bay Corridor Project, 2018 Moccasin Storm, Power Asset Acquisition Analysis, Van
Ness - Bus Rapid Transit, and San Joaquin Pipeline Replacement.

e The Airport’s net capital assets increased $606.0 million or 9.9 percent primarily due to the
capitalization of higher capital improvement project costs. The Airport maintains a Capital
Improvement Plan to build new facilities, improve existing facilities, renovate buildings, repair or
replace infrastructure, preserve assets, enhance safety and security, develop systems functionality,
and perform needed maintenance. Terminal 1 (T1) Redevelopment Program is currently in various
stages of design and construction. The first portion of the improvements, consisting of nine gates,
opened in July 2019. The second phase opened in May 2020, which added an additional nine
gates, for a total of 18 operational gates. When completed, the T1 project will provide a total of 25
gates. The Plot 2 Aircraft Parking and South McDonnell Road project, SFO Grand Hyatt Hotel,
Terminal 2 Office Tower, Industrial Waste Treatment Plant project, and the Airport Security
Infrastructure Program were completed during fiscal year 2020. As a result of the COVID-19
pandemic and the resulting economic uncertainty, the Airport reprioritized its capital projects and
is moving forward with those that have been identified as essential to the operations and safety of
the Airport.

e The Port’s net capital assets decreased by $2.5 million or 0.5 percent due to capitalization and
depreciation of capital improvements in 2020, including the Crane Cove Park, a new open space
in the Union Iron Works National Historic District located at Pier 70. Pier 29 Marine Substructure
Repair included substructure repairs to the underdeck structures (i.e. slabs, beams, and piles)
consistent with the historical features of the pier building and the Embarcadero Historic District.
Pier 27 and Pier 35 dredging program is essential work that maintains depths at berths for vessels
in support of maritime commerce. Dredging at the Pier 35 Cruise Terminal (east side) and the Pier
27 Cruise Terminal was performed during this fiscal year. Pier 19 and 23 Fire Standpipe provides
the San Francisco Fire Department (SFFD) additional firefighting resources, the Port installed
manual wet Class | fire standpipe systems at both Pier 19 and Pier 23. This included installation of
fire department connections (FDC), pipe distribution networks, hangers, bracing, and hose valves
at both facilities.

At the end of the year, the City’s business-type activities had approximately $1.30 billion in commitments
for various capital projects. Of this, Water Enterprise had an estimated $208.8 million, MTA had
$319.8 million, Wastewater had $453.1 million, Airport had $192.6 million, Hetch Hetchy had $103.5 million,
Port had $15.7 million, Laguna Honda Hospital had $0.4 million and the General Hospital had $2.9 million.

For government-wide financial statement presentation, all depreciable capital assets were depreciated from

acquisition date to the end of the current fiscal year. Governmental fund financial statements record capital
asset purchases as expenditures.
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Additional information about the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 7 to the Basic Financial
Statements.

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2020, the City had total long-term and commercial paper debt outstanding of $20.80 billion. Of
this amount, $2.35 billion represents general obligation bonds secured by ad valorem property taxes without
limitation as to rate or amount upon all property subject to taxation by the City. The remaining $18.45 billion
represents revenue bonds, commercial paper notes, certificates of participation and other debts of the City
secured solely by specified revenue sources. As noted previously, the City’s total long-term debt including
all bonds, loans, commercial paper notes and capital leases increased by $948.8 million or 4.8 percent
during the fiscal year.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the net increase in the long-term debt in the governmental activities was
$84.4 million and the net increase in business-type activities was $722.8 million as discussed in the
highlights above.

The City’s Charter imposes a limit on the amount of general obligation bonds the City can have outstanding
at any given time. That limit is three percent of the assessed value of taxable property in the City — estimated
at $279.37 billion in value as of the close of the fiscal year. As of June 30, 2020, the City had $2.35 billion
in authorized, outstanding general obligation bonds, which is equal to approximately 0.79 percent of gross
(0.84 percent of net) taxable assessed value of property. As of June 30, 2020, there were an additional
$2.18 billion in bonds that were authorized but unissued. If all these general obligation bonds were issued
and outstanding in full, the total debt burden would be approximately 1.52 percent of gross (1.62 percent
of net) taxable assessed value of property.

The City’s underlying ratings on general obligation bonds as of June 30, 2020 were:

S&P Global Ratings AAA
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. Aaa
Fitch Ratings AA+

During the fiscal year, S&P Global Ratings (S&P), Moody’s Investors Service (Moody’s) and Fitch Ratings
maintained the City’s general obligation bonds ratings of “AAA”, “Aaa” and “AA+”, respectively. S&P and
Fitch Ratings affirmed the City’s “Stable” rating outlook and Moody’s revised the rating outlook from “Stable”
to “Negative” on all the City’s outstanding general obligation bonds.

The City’s business-type activities carried underlying debt ratings for the SFMTA of “AA” from S&P and
“‘Aa2” from Moody’s. Moody’s, S&P and Fitch Ratings affirmed their underlying credit ratings on the
outstanding debt of the Airport of “A1”, “A+” and “A+”, respectively. S&P and Fitch Ratings revised the
Airport’s rating outlook from stable to negative and Moody’s revised the Airport’s rating outlook from positive
to stable during the fiscal year. The Water Enterprise carried underlying ratings of “Aa2” and “AA-" from
Moody’s and S&P, respectively. The Wastewater Enterprise carried underlying ratings of "Aa2" and "AA"
from Moody's and S&P, respectively. The 2020 revenue bonds issued by the Port have long-term credit
ratings of “Aa3”, “A” and “A” from Moody’s, S&P and Fitch Ratings, respectively.

Additional information in the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 8 to the Basic Financial Statements.
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Economic factors and future budgets and rates

San Francisco experienced severe negative economic impacts from the pandemic and the necessary
health response to it, which ended the longest period of expansion in U.S. history. The San Francisco
metro division lost nearly 175,000 jobs between March and April 2020, with a modest recovery of 45,000
of these jobs by the end of the fiscal year. Domestic and international enplanements at San Francisco
International Airport declined by 90 percent during the quarter, given national and international travel
restrictions. Public transit ridership via BART and Muni declined by 94.4 percent and 81.8 percent,
respectively during the quarter as many employers required employees to work remotely and cultural
activities in the City were curtailed. Hotel occupancy rates declined to 21 percent from 85 percent in the
same period the prior year.

This loss of economic activity resulted in significant losses of tax revenues during FY 2019-20 for
economically sensitive revenue streams. Hotel, sales, and parking taxes for the final quarter of FY 2019-
20 declined by 80 percent, 7 percent, and 22 percent, respectively, versus the previous quarter. These
losses were limited to the final quarter of the fiscal year, and were offset by less immediately impacted
General Fund revenue sources, resulting in overall General Fund revenue losses of $417 million, or 7
percent, compared to the prior fiscal year. These losses were offset by expenditure reductions and a limited
draw on the City’s discretionary reserves, implemented by the Mayor in May 2020.

The pandemic’s health, economic, and financial impacts have heightened during fiscal year 2020-21. In
May 2020, the Controller's Office, the Mayor’s Budget Office, and the Board of Supervisors Budget &
Legislative Analyst’s Office projected a combined $1.7 billion General Fund shortfall for fiscal year 2020-21
and fiscal year 2021-22. The Mayor proposed a budget to close this projected shortfall in August 2020.

The Board of Supervisors approved a final two-year budget for fiscal years 2020-21 and 2021-22 in
September 2020, which assumed an available balance of $370.4 million fully appropriated in fiscal year
2020-21 and fiscal year 2021-22 and contingency reserves of $507.4 million, leaving $18.3 million available
for future appropriations. The final adopted budget for the City was predicated on a gradual economic and
tax revenue recovery beginning in late fiscal year 2020-21, and bridged this projected shortfall through use
of reserves, reduction in capital and other citywide spending programs, inflationary cost controls, deferral
of planned new programs, limited operating budget reductions, and voter-adoption of a business tax
measure on the November 2020 ballot. This measure was approved by the voters, as were two other taxes
that will provide some relief financial benefit to the City in years ahead.
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REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors
with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the money it
receives. Below are the contacts for questions about this report or requests for additional financial

information.

City and County of San Francisco
Office of the Controller

1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 316
San Francisco, CA 94102-4694

Individual Department Financial Statements

San Francisco International Airport
Office of the Airport Deputy Director
Business and Finance Division

PO Box 8097

San Francisco, CA 94128

San Francisco Water Enterprise
Hetch Hetchy Water and Power

San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise
Chief Financial Officer

525 Golden Gate Avenue, 13™ Floor
San Francisco, CA 94102

Municipal Transportation Agency
SFMTA Chief Financial Officer

1 South Van Ness Avenue, 3 Floor
San Francisco, CA 94103

Zuckerberg San Francisco

General Hospital and Trauma Center
Chief Financial Officer

1001 Potrero Avenue, Suite 2A5

San Francisco, CA 94110

Successor Agency to the

San Francisco Redevelopment Agency
1 South Van Ness Avenue, 5" Floor

San Francisco, CA 94103

Port of San Francisco

Public Information Officer
Pier 1, The Embarcadero
San Francisco, CA 94111

Laguna Honda Hospital
Chief Financial Officer
375 Laguna Honda Blvd.
San Francisco, CA 94116

Health Service System
Chief Financial Officer

1145 Market Street, Suite 300
San Francisco, CA 94103

San Francisco

Employees’ Retirement System
Executive Director

1145 Market Street, 51" Floor

San Francisco, CA 94103

Retiree Health Care Trust

c/o Employees’ Retirement System
1145 Market Street, 51" Floor

San Francisco, CA 94103

Blended Component Units Financial Statements

San Francisco County Transportation Authority

Deputy Director for Administration and Finance
1455 Market Street, 22" Floor
San Francisco, CA 94103

San Francisco Finance Corporation
Office of Public Finance

City Hall, Room 336

1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place

San Francisco, CA 94102

WWW.SFGOV.ORG
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Primary Government Component Unit
Treasure Island
Governmental Business-Type Development
Activities Activities Total Authority
ASSETS
Current assets:
Deposits and investments with City Treasury.................. $ 6,762,347 $ 2,731,416 $ 9,493,763 $ -
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury............. 310,700 23,060 333,760 -
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectible amounts
of $356,742 for the primary government):
Property taxes and penalties...........cccocevveveresieerienennnnn 184,652 - 184,652 -
Other [0Cal taXeS.......cccvvevvieriieeieecie e 398,577 - 398,577 -
Federal and state grants and subventions..................... 324,931 235,101 560,032 -
Charges for Services........ccoovvvrvververnnnne. 123,115 293,416 416,531 8,416
Interest and other......... 30,654 280,161 310,815 -
Due from component units 15,726 - 15,726 -
INVENEOMIES ..ottt 44,703 120,505 165,208 -
OthEr ASSELS.....ccicuvieeiteee ettt 25,987 12,278 38,265 -
Restricted assets:
Deposits and investments with City Treasury...... - 543,550 543,550 -
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury.......... 6,324 232,393 238,717 -
Grants and other receivables.............ccocevveeieeiieiiinenen. - 96,448 96,448 -
Total Current aSSetS........coccvveeieveeeeciee e 8,227,716 4,568,328 12,796,044 8,416
Noncurrent assets:
Loan receivables (net of allowance for uncollectible
amounts Of $1,746,661)........cccccveeerenerieerieieeieseeeenens 144,684 - 144,684 -
Advance to COmMpPoNENt UNIS.........cceveevereneenieneneeneeees 4,669 6,581 11,250 -
(@)1 1T = 1YY= TN 412 8,951 9,363 3,982
Restricted assets:
Deposits and investments with City Treasury................ - 1,127,475 1,127,475 -
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury.......... - 748,249 748,249 -
Grants and other receivables............cccoovvvvevenenienennns - 17,932 17,932 -
Capital assets:
Land and other assets not being depreciated................ 1,463,869 5,532,830 6,996,699 34,846
Facilities, infrastructure and equipment, net of
AEPreCiation........cceiieieriiriieiesiee e 5,238,888 16,556,636 21,795,524 4,307
Total capital aSSetS.....ccceveeririeeeere e 6,702,757 22,089,466 28,792,223 39,153
Total NONCUITeNt ASSELS.......ccvecveeerreeieecre e e 6,852,522 23,998,654 30,851,176 43,135
TOtAl ASSELS....eeeiiiiieie et 15,080,238 28,566,982 43,647,220 51,551
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unamortized loss on refunding of debt.............ccccceenene 11,207 194,982 206,189 -
Deferred outflows on derivative instruments.................... - 28,221 28,221 -
Deferred outflows related to pensions..........ccccocveverenene 875,556 643,000 1,518,556 15
Deferred outflows related to OPEB...........cccccooeeevvvineennn. 274,703 236,802 511,505 -
Total deferred outflows of resources............ccceevvvevenennene $ 1,161,466 $ 1,103,005 $ 2,264,471 $ 15

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Primary Government Component Unit
Treasure Island
Governmental Business-Type Development
Activities Activities Total Authority
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
ACCOUNtS PAYADIE. ......cciveiiiieeiiiectee s $ 566,517 $ 225926 $ 792,443  $ 1,375
AcCrued PaYrOll.........oceieeiiieeierere e 143,744 107,442 251,186 114
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay.........ccccceeeveverieneenne. 108,833 75,598 184,431 -
Accrued workers' Compensation............ccocceeveeeevrcenenens 55,003 40,589 95,592 -
Estimated claims payable............ccooeiiniiiiniicceee 71,454 78,970 150,424 -
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables.. 318,757 982,693 1,301,450 -
Accrued interest payable...........ccocoovvieiininie 21,659 67,718 89,377 -
Unearned grant and subvention revenues.................c..... 187,824 - 187,824 -
Due to primary governMENt..........cccveveruervereereseereeseeenns - - - 10,516
INnternal balanCes.............ooovveeiiciee e 38,837 (38,837) - -
Unearned revenues and other liabilities...........cccccoeeeeeennee 1,702,171 466,130 2,168,301 2,473
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables.......... - 41,372 41,372 -
Accrued interest payable............cocooeiiniiiinii - 62,065 62,065 -
Oher ... - 285,592 285,592 -
Total current liabilities...........ccoevvrinreineiicecrce 3,214,799 2,395,258 5,610,057 14,478
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay.........ccccoceveeriernenne 88,929 59,629 148,558 -
Accrued workers' Compensation............c.ccveevereneereennens 237,128 191,907 429,035 -
Estimated claims payable..........cccccccovvveievvenne 122,683 65,567 188,250 -
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables.. 3,758,055 15,694,308 19,452,363 -
Advance from primary government..................... - - - 6,581
Unearned revenues and other liabilities...............cccceceveene 1,351 141,195 142,546 -
Derivative instruments liabilities............cccoceevevveeeeciee e, - 28,221 28,221 -
Net pension liability. 2,823,589 1,831,949 4,655,538 25
Net other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability........ 2,118,111 1,784,905 3,903,016 -
Total noncurrent liabilities.............ccceevereneincnenne. 9,149,846 19,797,681 28,947,527 6,606
Total HAbIlItIES.......cveeiireiieeeeee e 12,364,645 22,192,939 34,557,584 21,084
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unamortized gain on refunding of debt.............ccecveuenee. 18,059 2,594 20,653 -
Deferred inflows related to pensions.. 543,297 379,188 922,485 5
Deferred inflows related to OPEB..........cccccceecievieiieenen. 182,081 130,293 312,374 -
Total deferred inflows of resources...........cocoveevenereeniene. 743,437 512,075 1,255,512 5
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets, Note 10(d).........c.cceuenee. 3,853,271 7,013,098 10,474,620 39,153
Restricted for:
Reserve for rainy day..........coeeoereneeienenieee e 229,069 - 229,069 -
DEDE SEIVICE.....oiiiiicieiiitee e 113,765 316,671 430,436 -
Capital projects, Note 10(d).. 297,975 523,169 793,888 -
Community development............cccovvevereneenenence e 628,484 - 628,484 -
Transportation Authority activities............ccocevevveienennne 28,673 - 28,673 -
Building inspection programs...........cccceeeeveceninrecesienennens 162,182 - 162,182 -
Children and famili€s..........ccceeeeeiiiiiiiiiieee e 187,538 - 187,538 -
Culture and recreation. 231,624 - 231,624 -
[T | RN 128,142 - 128,142 -
Other PUIPOSES. .....coviiiiiiieiesiiee ettt 111,146 116,861 228,007 -
Total reStriCted.......cocveeiieiie e 2,118,598 956,701 3,048,043 -
Unrestricted (deficit), NOte 10(d)...........cervercrrercreerrcneees (2,838,247) (1,004,826) (3,424,068) (8,676)
Total NEt POSIION. ....c.civiriiieiirerieeeee e $ 3,133622 $ 6,964,973 $ 10,098,595 $ 30,477

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2020
(In Thousands)

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Program Revenues Primary Government Component Unit
Operating Capital Grants Treasure Island
Charges for Grants and and Governmental Business-Type Development
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Authority
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
Public protection............cccoveerieunnne $ 1,661,262 $ 105,508 $ 211,040 $ 2,734 $ (1,341,980) $ - 8 (1,341,980) $ -
Public works, transportation
and COMMErCE.........ccvvruriceniinnins 362,133 138,328 47,997 62,622 (113,186) - (113,186) -
Human welfare and
neighborhood development. 2,137,968 212,743 827,706 63,770 (1,033,749) - (1,033,749) -
Community health 1,148,208 107,078 402,619 750 (637,761) - (637,761) -
Culture and recreation 519,015 127,196 8,066 1,524 (382,229) - (382,229) -
General administration and
finance. 416,370 97,130 16,473 15,000 (287,767) - (287,767) -
General City responsibilities.. 119,693 66,885 4,150 - (48,658) - (48,658) -
Unallocated interest on long-
term debt and cost of issuance...... 145,600 - - - (145,600) - (145,600) -
Total governmental
activities 6,510,249 854,868 1,518,051 146,400 (3,990,930) - (3,990,930) -
1,344,734 943,879 - 49,292 - (351,563) (351,563) -
1,438,417 390,285 375,884 311,388 - (360,860) (360,860) -
131,884 108,863 2,141 586 - (20,294) (20,294) -
576,140 583,351 209 - - 7,420 7,420 -
392,669 421,284 4,744 - - 33,359 33,359 -
Hospital 1,332,648 1,092,622 72,684 - - (167,342) (167,342) -
Sewer............ 296,842 344,128 11 - - 47,297 47,297 -
Total business-type
activitie 5,513,334 3,884,412 455,673 361,266 - (811,983) (811,983) -
Total primary government...................... $ 12023583 $ 4739280 $ 1,973,724  $ 507,666 (3,990,930) (811,983) (4,802,913) -
Component unit:
Treasure Island Development
Authority. $ 17,875 $ 11,785 $ - $ 4,615 $ 1,475)
General Revenues
Taxes:
Property taxes 2,733,334 - 2,733,334 -
Business taxe: 833,931 - 833,931 -
Sales and use tax. 279,453 - 279,453 -
Hotel room tax 280,970 - 280,970 -
Utility users ta 94,231 - 94,231 -
Parking tax 69,461 - 69,461 -
Real property transfer tax. 334,535 - 334,535 -
Other local taxe: 70,863 - 70,863 -
Interest and investment income 142,181 151,319 293,500 -
Other. 63,552 245,466 309,018 5,713
Transfers - internal activities of primary government..............cccovevvenissseninns (679,450) 679,450 - -
Total general revenues and transfer: 4,223,061 1,076,235 5,299,296 5,713
Change in net position. 232,131 264,252 496,383 4,238
Net position at beginning of year. 2,901,491 6,700,721 9,602,212 26,239
Net position at end of year. $ 3,133,622 $ 6,964,973 $ 10,098,595 $ 30,477

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2020

(With comparative financial information as of June 30, 2019)

(In Thousands)

General Fund Other Governmental Funds

Total Governmental Funds

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Assets:
Deposits and investments with City Treasury. 3,492,112 $ 3284538 $ 3,236,428 $ 2538400 $ 6,728,540 $ 5,822,938
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury.. 126 159 310,574 274,774 310,700 274,933
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectible
amounts of $309,138 in 2020; $237,314 in 2019):
Property taxes and penalties 173,412 95,869 11,240 13,955 184,652 109,824
Other local taxes 277,813 309,569 120,764 85,377 398,577 394,946
Federal and state grants and subventions 223,694 163,247 101,237 113,981 324,931 277,228
Charges for services 106,265 105,935 16,612 20,266 122,877 126,201
Interest and other 16,123 28,618 14,180 17,946 30,303 46,564
Due from other fund 6,912 9,845 14,196 9,644 21,108 19,489
Due from component units 8,763 2,149 6,963 3,368 15,726 5,517
Advance to COMPONENE UNIt..........oveveueiririieeeriirieieieeieeseeeeeenas - - 4,669 6,442 4,669 6,442
Loans receivable (net of allowance for uncollectible
amounts of $1,746,661 in 2020; $1,493,211 in 2019) 15,461 16,004 129,223 168,551 144,684 184,555
Inventories 44,703 - - - 44,703 -
Other assets 8,856 2,829 17,131 17,356 25,987 20,185
Total assets $ 4374240 $ 4018762 $ 3983217 $ 3270060 $ 8,357,457 $ 7,288,822
Liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYADIE. ....cvvviieieieieisisieieeeeies e $ 348,732 % 333922 % 207,538 $ 180,615 $ 556,270 $ 514,537
Accrued payroll 119,761 97,555 21,323 19,136 141,084 116,691
Unearned grant and subvention revenues.... 76,172 11,627 111,652 53,338 187,824 64,965
Due to other funds 1,030 797 58,895 85,460 59,925 86,257
Unearned revenues and other liabilities.................c.cccoceeeine 785,789 633,424 916,348 235,713 1,702,137 869,137
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables.................. - - 108,190 92,779 108,190 92,779
Total liabilities 1,331,484 1,077,325 1,423,946 667,041 2,755,430 1,744,366
Deferred inflows of resources 356,834 224,414 205,317 179,465 562,151 403,879
Fund balances:
Nonspendable 1,274 1,259 82 140 1,356 1,399
Restricted... 229,069 324,977 2,229,282 2,309,105 2,458,351 2,634,082
Committed 363,410 397,563 - - 363,410 397,563
Assigned 1,581,761 1,361,787 125,319 114,640 1,707,080 1,476,427
Unassigned 510,408 631,437 (729) (331) 509,679 631,106
Total fund balanCes..........cccovvveeiccennecceeeeeee 2,685,922 2,717,023 2,353,954 2,423,554 5,039,876 5,140,577
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balance! $ 4374240 $ 4018762 $ 3083217 $ 3270060 $ 8357457 $ 7,288,822

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2020
(In Thousands)

Fund balances — total governmental funds $ 5,039,876

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds. 6,688,521

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the governmental funds. (4,520,475)

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are
deferred inflows of resources and are recognized as revenues in the period the amounts become
available in the governmental funds. 562,151

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in the funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when
due. (20,776)

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. (7,415)

Net pension liability and pension related deferred outflows and inflows of resources are not due in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds. (2,450,554)

Net OPEB asset/liability and OPEB related deferred outflows and inflows of resources are not due in
the current period and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds. (1,978,234)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of capital lease financing,
equipment maintenance services, printing and mailing services, and telecommunications and
information systems to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of internal service funds are included

in governmental activities in the statement of net position. (179,472)
Net position of governmental activities $ 3,133,622

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With comparative financial information year ended June 30, 2019)
(In Thousands)

General Fund Other Governmental Funds  Total Governmental Funds
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Revenues:
Property taxes.. $ 2,075002 $ 2,248,004 $ 579935 $ 517,469 $ 2,654,937 $ 2,765,473
Business taxes.... 822,154 917,811 11,777 1,741 833,931 919,552
Sales and use tax... 180,184 213,625 99,269 115,671 279,453 329,296
Hotel room tax. 252,170 392,328 28,800 16,020 280,970 408,348
Utility users tax.... 94,231 93,918 - - 94,231 93,918
Parking tax 69,461 86,020 - - 69,461 86,020
Real property transfer tax. 334,535 364,044 - - 334,535 364,044
Other local taxes 65,599 65,371 5,264 - 70,863 65,371
Licenses, permits and franchises 25,318 27,960 13,154 15,456 38,472 43,416
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties 3,705 4,740 40,125 44,156 43,830 48,896
Interest and investment income 65,459 88,523 76,179 89,309 141,638 177,832
Rents and concessions 9,816 14,460 109,049 140,886 118,865 155,346
Intergovernmental:
Federal.... 378,467 252,502 212,230 189,826 590,697 442,328
802,470 814,727 187,794 150,189 990,264 964,916
2,404 2,120 24,079 11,510 26,483 13,630
229,759 257,814 168,646 179,726 398,405 437,540
62,218 46,254 152,141 199,756 214,359 246,010
5,472,952 5,890,221 1,708,442 1,671,715 7,181,394 7,561,936
Expenditures:
Current:
Public protection 1,479,195 1,382,031 71,930 78,155 1,551,125 1,460,186
Public works, transportation and commerce... 203,350 202,988 285,347 225,390 488,697 428,378
Human welfare and neighborhood development. 1,252,865 1,071,309 817,523 626,772 2,070,388 1,698,081
Community health.......... 909,261 809,120 117,654 109,210 1,026,915 918,330
Culture and recreation.... 155,164 152,250 304,993 301,304 460,157 453,554
General administration and finance.... 304,073 267,997 88,556 78,157 392,629 346,154
General City responsibilities 129,941 144,808 - - 129,941 144,808
Debt service:
Principal retirement. - - 296,875 326,416 296,875 326,416
Interest and other fiscal charges - 3 150,646 168,836 150,646 168,839
Bond issuance costs - - 4,455 876 4,455 876
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent.... - - 8,905 - 8,905 -
Capital outlay. - - 454,137 323,979 454,137 323,979
Total expenditures... 4,433,849 4,030,506 2,601,021 2,239,095 7,034,870 6,269,601

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures............cccocevveiiniiininiieninns 1,039,103 1,859,715 (892,579) (567,380) 146,524 1,292,335
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 87,618 104,338 613,773 749,215 701,391 853,553

Transfers out (1,157,822) (1,468,971) (222,503) (185,995) (1,380,325) (1,654,966)
Issuance of bonds:

Face value of bonds isSUEd..........cccceoervrrvieeincens - - 615,625 72,420 615,625 72,420

Premium on issuance of bonds - - 73,759 - 73,759 -

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent.... - - (257,675) - (257,675) -

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,070,204) (1,364,633) 822,979 635,640 (247,225) (728,993)

Net changes in fund balances (31,101) 495,082 (69,600) 68,260 (100,701) 563,342

Fund balances at beginning of year 2,717,023 2,221,941 2,423,554 2,355,294 5,140,577 4,577,235

Fund balances at end of year.... . $ 2685922 $ 2717023 $ 2,353,954 $ 2423554 $ 5,039,876 $ 5,140,577

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2020
(In Thousands)

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (100,701)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of

activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as

depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation, the

loss on disposal of capital assets, and contributed capital assets in the current period. 545,547

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current

financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Certain long-term liabilities reported in the prior year statement of net position were paid during

the current period resulting in expenditures in the governmental funds. This is the amount by

which the increase in long-term liabilities exceeded expenditures in funds that do not require

the use of current financial resources. (536,331)

Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the period the amounts become available. This
is the current period amount by which the deferred inflows of resources increased in the
governmental funds. 78,397

Other revenues that were unavailable are reported as deferred inflows of resources in the
governmental funds. This is the current period amount by which deferred inflows of resources
increased in the governmental funds. 97,152

Governmental funds report revenues and expenditures primarily pertaining to long-term loan

activities, which are not reported in the statement of activities. These activities are reported at

the government-wide level in the statement of net position. This is the net revenues reported in

the governmental funds. (17,075)

Changes to net pension liability and pension related deferred outflows and inflows of
resources do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported
as expenditures in governmental funds. 203,093

Changes to net OPEB asset/liability and OPEB related deferred outflows and inflows of
resources do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported
as expenditures in governmental funds. 66,205

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds,

while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt and capital leases consume the current

financial resources of governmental funds. These transactions, however, have no effect on

net position. This is the amount by which bond proceeds exceeded the principal retirement

and payments to escrow for refunded debt in the current period. (56,750)

Bond premiums are reported in the governmental funds when the bonds are issued, and are
capitalized and amortized in the statement of net position. This is the amount of bond
premiums capitalized during the current period. (73,759)

Interest expense in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in the
governmental funds because of additional accrued and accreted interest; amortization of bond

premiums and refunding losses and gains. 17,659
The activities of internal service funds are reported with governmental activities. 8,694
Change in net position of governmental activities $ 232,131

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2020
(With comparative financial information as of June 30, 2019)
(In Thousands)

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

San Francisco

San Francisco

Hetch Hetchy

Major Funds
General
Municipal Hospital

San Francisco

Governmental Activities -

International Water Water and Transportation Medical Wastewater Port of San Laguna Honda Total Internal Service Funds
Airport Enterprise Power Agency Center Enterprise Francisco Hospital 2020 2019 2020 2019
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Deposits and investments with City Treasury. . $ 515525 $ 451,499 $ 355,051 $ 731,318 141,354  $ 351,915 $ 184,754 $ - 2,731,416 $ 2,452,211 33,807 25,465
Deposits and investments outside City Treasur 18,952 353 2 3,382 8 356 5 2 23,060 14,988 - -
Receivables (net of allowance for
uncollectible amounts of $47,604 and
$45,833 in 2020 and 2019, respectively):
Federal and state grants and subventions............... - 23 4,219 189,703 620 - 13,591 26,945 235,101 296,325 - -
Charges for service: 46,618 59,946 37,708 6,643 65,555 33,749 - 43,197 293,416 287,606 238 42
Interest and other. 3,683 4,956 978 6,160 262,623 983 591 187 280,161 239,513 351 416
Capital leases receivable - - - - - - - - - - 12,372 5,803
Due from other funds. - 341 6,892 37,178 - 429 429 - 45,269 69,066 - -
Due from component Unit.............ccocevveeeevieinieciennenns - - - - - - - - - 6 - -
Inventorie: 5,856 5777 1,796 86,460 15,078 2,476 1,583 1,479 120,505 102,735 - -
Other asset: 5,600 - 5,519 916 - 195 48 - 12,278 14,212 - -
Restricted assets:
Deposits and investments with City Treasury.......... 395,065 - - - - - 55,958 92,527 543,550 554,805 - -
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury. 198,870 16,638 151 - - 11,043 5,691 - 232,393 379,303 6,324 6,565
Grants and other receivables 14,412 76,954 192 - - 4,890 - - 96,448 45,574 - -
Total current assets 1,204,581 616,487 412,508 1,061,760 485,238 406,036 262,650 164,337 4,613,597 4,456,344 53,092 38,291
Noncurrent assets:
Other assets - 3,791 923 - - 1,524 2,713 - 8,951 9,024 - -
Capital leases receivable. - - - - - - - - - - 111,420 124,340
Advance to component Unit..............cceeeirireneicininenns - - 6,581 - - - - - 6,581 2,599 - -
Restricted assets:
Deposits and investments with City Treasury.......... 937,498 - 17,828 117,017 - 55,132 - - 1,127,475 1,512,128 - -
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury. 631,919 80,924 3,795 20,831 195 10,461 - 124 748,249 641,911 - -
Grants and other receivables 3,206 4 - 315 - 467 - 13,940 17,932 22,494 - -
Capital assets:
Land and other assets not being depreciated.......... 1,351,983 598,697 195,695 2,267,293 18,521 957,956 139,258 3,427 5,532,830 6,121,153 313 313
Facilities, infrastructure, and
equipment, net of depreciation............ccccevecennnne 5,385,405 4,931,848 410,516 2,834,505 93,279 2,104,332 322,519 474,232 16,556,636 14,568,493 13,923 11,777
Total capital assets 6,737,388 5,530,545 606,211 5,101,798 111,800 3,062,288 461,777 477,659 22,089,466 20,689,646 14,236 12,090
Total noncurrent assets 8,310,011 5,615,264 635,338 5,239,961 111,995 3,129,872 464,490 491,723 23,998,654 22,877,802 125,656 136,430
Total asset: 9,514,592 6,231,751 1,047,846 6,301,721 597,233 3,535,908 727,140 656,060 28,612,251 27,334,146 178,748 174,721
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unamortized loss on refunding of debt. 50,429 144,189 - - - 189 175 - 194,982 204,755 880 973
Deferred outflows on derivative instrument: 28,221 - - - - - - - 28,221 38,828 - -
Deferred outflows related to pensions. 94,151 67,084 18,238 219,043 139,021 30,422 13,835 61,206 643,000 560,455 18,512 15,614
Deferred outflows related to OPEB 32,003 27,583 5,452 85,860 46,776 10,065 4,481 24,582 236,802 143,245 6,222 3,876
Total deferred outflows of resources................... 204,804 238,856 23,690 304,903 185,797 40,676 18,491 85,788 1,103,005 947,283 25,614 20,463

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable.
Accrued payroll
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay..............ccccoeunne
Accrued workers' compensation.............cccoveiiennn
Estimated claims payable
Due to other funds
Unearned revenues and other liabilities......................
Accrued interest payable
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables......
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables....
Accrued interest payable.
Other,
Total current liabilities............c.cccoeviveiiiiiininn
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay.
Accrued workers' compensation....
Estimated claims payable
Unearned revenues and other liabilities
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payable:
Derivative instruments liabilities..
Net pension liability.
Net other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability...
Total noncurrent liabilities................ccooveinennn
Total liabilitie:

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unamortized gain on refunding of debt.
Deferred inflows related to pensions
Deferred inflows related to OPEB....

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets...........cccccevvicieniiiniens
Restricted:
Debt service
Capital project:
Other purposes
Unrestricted (deficit)
Total net position

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds (Continued)
June 30, 2020
(With comparative financial information as of June 30, 2019)
(In Thousands)

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Major Funds

General
San Francisco San Francisco Hetch Hetchy Municipal Hospital San Francisco Governmental Activities -
International Water Water and Transportation Medical Wastewater Port of San Laguna Honda Total Internal Service Funds
Airport Enterprise Power Agency Center Enterprise Francisco Hospital 2020 2019 2020 2019

$ 52,851 $ 10574 $ 37,049 $ 76,674 $ 16,891 $ 20,044 $ 8,055 $ 3,788 $ 225926 $ 230,184 $ 10,247  $ 2,344
15,628 8,491 3,386 34,893 27,131 5,510 2,059 10,344 107,442 91,560 2,660 2,250
11,692 6,169 2,682 25,908 16,450 4,801 1,587 6,309 75,598 68,412 2,035 1,936
2,169 1,781 585 25,393 5,609 1,112 450 3,490 40,589 39,274 284 306
52 4,740 1,032 64,052 - 8,994 100 - 78,970 48,686 - -
221 674 849 437 - 849 3,402 - 6,432 2,298 20 -
- 29,431 5,718 63,989 292,600 5,243 16,015 53,134 466,130 466,085 2,671 2,556
- 42,752 508 4,790 62 17,416 1,338 852 67,718 65,501 883 1,040
190,908 459,258 66,034 9,415 13,547 234,384 3,367 5,780 982,693 858,088 12,461 6,083
41,372 - - - - - - - 41,372 40,782 - -
62,065 - - - - - - - 62,065 56,096 - -
152,759 29,951 11,738 4,966 - 85,355 - 823 285,592 250,634 - -
529,717 593,821 129,581 310,517 372,290 383,708 36,373 84,520 2,440,527 2,217,600 31,261 16,515
10,115 5,451 2,212 18,581 13,596 4113 1,259 4,302 59,629 46,600 2,137 1,649
6,550 7,393 2,802 117,189 31,681 4,939 2,107 19,246 191,907 187,616 1,299 1,391
116 6,027 1,854 50,323 - 6,897 350 - 65,567 60,430 - -
90 55,177 3,399 - - 7,800 74,729 - 141,195 145,287 - -
8,620,451 4,773,240 61,137 352,170 9,198 1,710,696 81,140 86,276 15,694,308 14,970,503 115,312 128,457
28,221 - - - - - - - 28,221 46,085 - -
278,176 178,133 49,531 620,468 417,139 86,235 37,124 165,143 1,831,949 1,772,650 48,163 49,386
256,506 163,684 38,530 692,620 371,588 58,183 31,448 172,346 1,784,905 1,643,413 48,300 44,469
9,200,225 5,189,105 159,465 1,851,351 843,202 1,878,863 228,157 447,313 19,797,681 18,872,584 215,211 225,352
9,729,942 5,782,926 289,046 2,161,868 1,215,492 2,262,571 264,530 531,833 22,238,208 21,090,184 246,472 241,867
959 - - 200 - - - 1,435 2,594 1,328 317 356
62,787 34,894 10,843 129,910 83,966 16,892 7,547 32,349 379,188 336,786 11,125 9,382
18,448 11,772 3,867 50,639 26,725 4,185 2,262 12,395 130,293 152,410 4,765 4,124
82,194 46,666 14,710 180,749 110,691 21,077 9,809 46,179 512,075 490,524 16,207 13,862
(725,562) 527,856 482,986 4,735,223 89,208 1,183,288 334,472 385,627 7,013,098 6,764,333 13,601 11,142
220,591 15,916 142 19,007 - 1,227 - 59,788 316,671 331,118 - -
406,194 43,122 6,513 - 15,214 - 42,371 9,755 523,169 556,980 - -
- - - 114,190 - - - 2,671 116,861 165,675 - -
6,037 54,121 278,139 (604,413) (647,575) 108,421 94,449 (294,005) (1,004,826) (1,117,385) (71,918) (71,687)
$ (92,740) $ 641,015 $ 767,780 $ 4,264,007 $ (543,153) $ 1,292936 $ 471292 $ 163,836 $ 6964973 $ 6,700,721 $ (58,317) $ (60,545)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position — Proprietary Funds

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With comparative financial information year ended June 30, 2019)
(In Thousands)

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Major Funds
General
San Francisco San Francisco Hetch Hetchy Municipal Hospital San Francisco Governmental Activities -
International Water Water and Transportation Medical Wastewater Port of San Laguna Honda Total Internal Service Funds
Airport Enterprise Power Agency Center Enterprise Francisco Hospital 2020 2019 2020 2019
Operating revenues:
Aviation $ 613473 $ -8 -8 - 8 -8 -8 -8 - $ 613473 $ 565,635 $ - 8 -
Water and power service - 550,753 420,937 - - - - - 971,690 854,812 - -
Passenger fees - - - 152,924 - - - - 152,924 195,736 - -
Net patient SErvice reVenUE............c.ccceeeeereereeerernnenns - - - - 884,973 - - 197,710 1,082,683 999,900 - -
Sewer service. - - - - - 331,721 - - 331,721 317,761 - -
Rents and concession: 142,608 12,124 347 6,575 2,640 664 81,651 - 246,609 270,242 445 528
Parking and transportation................ccceeveeveeeeennnnns 112,730 - - 165,881 - - 18,540 - 297,151 408,262 - -
Other charges for SErVICES..........ccovveiceennnireens - - - 27,557 - - - - 27,557 33,843 162,492 154,517
Other revenues 75,068 20,474 - 37,348 5,664 11,743 8,672 1,635 160,604 194,426 - -
Total operating revenues. 943,879 583,351 421,284 390,285 893,277 344,128 108,863 199,345 3,884,412 3,840,617 162,937 155,045
Operating expenses:
Personal services 356,902 119,943 64,936 876,580 619,369 91,013 42,650 217,071 2,388,464 2,154,865 62,101 59,979
Contractual services 103,991 14,523 16,941 149,305 243,349 19,357 28,901 17,519 593,886 540,683 66,328 62,428
Light, heat and power 25,655 - 223,601 - - - 2,883 - 252,139 198,188 - -
Materials and supplies 15,253 14,050 3,654 69,554 110,443 8,991 1,628 22,023 245,596 230,910 14,790 16,369
Depreciation and amortization. 312,118 142,228 20,999 205,112 21,689 62,967 26,379 12,381 803,873 720,576 3,595 2,859
General and administrative.. 19,159 46,245 47,888 56,382 734 42,622 4,405 - 217,435 163,290 1,392 2,714
Services provided by other
departments 29,531 61,128 11,007 76,259 52,127 37,309 20,042 12,644 300,047 292,128 12,311 10,905
Other. 68,463 - - (2,586) (2,390) - 327 - 63,814 30,686 675 3,262
Total operating eXpenses...........ccveereriiniiiciisieen 931,072 398,117 389,026 1,430,606 1,045,321 262,259 127,215 281,638 4,865,254 4,331,326 161,192 158,516
Operating iNCOME (I0SS).......v..crrveeerereerererereeesenenees 12,807 185,234 32,258 (1,040,321) (152,044) 81,869 (18,352) (82,293) (980,842) (490,709) 1,745 (3,471)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Operating grants:
Federal - 209 873 210,705 16,696 11 399 1,440 230,333 19,697 329 -
State / other - - 3,871 165,179 54,548 - 1,742 - 225,340 232,060 - -
Interest and investment inCome.............cccoovvvvruninnn 87,250 10,517 9,449 19,110 5,031 12,137 5,306 2,519 151,319 182,666 2,967 3,599
Interest expense (300,160) (177,494) (2,809) (7,811) (1,161) (34,569) (4,063) (4,528) (532,595) (471,300) (3,089) (3,911)
Other nonoperating revenues.. 81,132 94,525 24,115 22,886 - 5,547 3,396 13,865 245,466 237,045 792 665
Other nonoperating expenses. . (113,502) (529) (834) - - (14) (606) - (115,485) (83,897) - -
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)................. (245,280) (72,772) 34,665 410,069 75,114 (16,888) 6,174 13,296 204,378 116,271 999 353
Income (loss) before capital
contributions, transfers, and special item............... (232,473) 112,462 66,923 (630,252) (76,930) 64,981 (12,178) (68,997) (776,464) (374,438) 2,744 (3,118)
Capital contribution: 49,292 - - 311,388 - - 586 - 361,266 467,069 - -
Transfers in - 1,220 14,000 533,569 69,106 280 52,309 90,948 761,432 910,011 - 47
Transfers out (33,743) (14,805) (32) - (18,626) (1,468) (63) (13,245) (81,982) (107,263) (516) (1,382)
Special item:
Receipt of South Beach Harbor operations - - - - - - - - - 18,340 - -
Change in net position (216,924) 98,877 80,891 214,705 (26,450) 63,793 40,654 8,706 264,252 913,719 2,228 (4,453)
Net position (deficit) at beginning of year. . 124,184 542,138 686,889 4,049,302 (516,703) 1,229,143 430,638 155,130 6,700,721 5,787,002 (60,545) (56,092)
Net position (deficit) at end of year $ (92,740) $ 641,015 $ 767,780 $ 4,264,007 $  (543153) $ 1292936 $ 471292 $ 163836 $ 6964973 $ 6700721 $ (58,317) $ (60,545)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With comparative financial information year ended June 30, 2019)

(In Thousands)

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Major Funds
San San General San
Francisco Francisco Hetch Hetchy Municipal Hospital Francisco Laguna Governmental Activities -
International Water Water and ~ Transportation Medical Wastewater Port of San Honda Total Internal Service Funds
Airport Enterprise Power Agency Center Enterprise Francisco Hospital 2020 2019 2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers, including cash deposits................. $ 979,219 $ 565,100 $ 422,749 $ 445591 $ 837,365 $ 343,966 $ 29,495 $ 194,785 $ 3818270 $ 3749454 $ 172,350 $ 218,809
Cash received from tenants for rent. - 11,921 284 6,550 2,640 640 76,592 - 98,627 106,543 - -
Cash paid for employees' services (320,001) (127,216) (60,284) (847,737) (589,470) (89,751) (44,885) (219,598) (2,298,942) (2,172,675) (61,470) (59,767)
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and SEIVICES................ccoowvvcirinr.. (285,723) (133,064) (282,762) (387,100) (399,953) (99,755) (54,469) (51,024) (1,693,850) (1,635,045) (88,015) (150,275)
Cash paid for judgments and claims. - (3,976) (2,123) (4,247) - (4,105) - - (14,451) (18,300) - -
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities...................... 373,495 312,765 77,864 (786,943) (149,418) 150,995 6,733 (75,837) (90,346) 29,977 22,865 8,767
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Operating grants - 255 4,037 354,745 70,652 1,394 2,846 1,439 435,368 237,922 329 -
Transfers in - 1,220 14,000 489,430 69,106 280 - 90,948 664,984 818,633 - 47
Transfers out. (33,522) (14,805) (32 - (18,626) (1,468) (63) (13,245) (81,761) (107,263) (516) (1,382)
Other noncapital financing source: 12,790 6,685 22,963 6,920 - 1,511 21,000 - 71,869 42,739 - -
Other noncapital financing uses (88,041) (529) (1,071) (1,264) - (52) - (8) (90,965) (68,590) - -
Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities (108,773) (7,174) 39,897 849,831 121,132 1,665 23,783 79,134 999,495 923,441 (187) (1,335)
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Capital grants and other proceeds restricted for capital purposes... 53,074 - - 357,871 - - 495 14,181 425,621 550,767 - -
Transfers in. - - - 44,139 - - 52,309 - 96,448 91,378 - -
Bond sale proceeds and loans received 959,475 613,002 - 3,818 - 36,152 - - 1,612,447 1,624,289 - 55,231
Proceeds from sale/transfer of capital assets. - 397 9 399 - 38 15 - 858 6,114 - -
Proceeds from commercial paper borrowings 49,375 201,018 12,811 - 196 4,390 - - 267,790 612,303 - -
Proceeds from passenger facility charges 91,921 - - - - - - - 91,921 111,121 - -
Acquisition of capital asset: (890,511) (200,600) (85,465) (500,765) (4,040) (337,299) (24,930) (1,816) (2,045,426) (2,945,436) (5,741) (3,406)
Retirement of capital leases, bonds and l0ans...............cccooo...cooeee... (211,170) (720,633) (2,894) (10,996) (5,539) (111,984) (6,185) (19,793) (1,089,194) (392,646) (6,083) (92,719)
Bond issue costs paid. - (1,913) - - - (40) - - (1,953) (2,805) (61) (644)
Interest paid on debt. (399,724) (213,874) (3,901) (10,113) (1,185) (72,850) (3,673) (5,755) (711,075) (630,117) (3,246) (3,977)
Federal interest income subsidy from Build America Bonds............ - 23,894 467 - - 4,032 - - 28,393 28,576 - -
Other capital financing sources - - - 6,620 - - - - 6,620 15,633 - 7,566
Other capital financing uses - - - - - - (1,180) - (1,180) (2,565) - -
Net cash provided by (used in)
capital and related financing aCtVItIes. .............c.....ccoovverrernrrenn. (347,560) (298,709) (78,973) (109,027) (10,568) (477,561) 16,851 (13,183) (1,318,730) (933,388) (15,131) (37,949)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investments with trustees (1,266,897) (297,633) (5,028) - - (92,971) - - (1,662,529) (1,592,629) - -
Proceeds from sale of investments with trustees............c..ccoceevennn. 1,327,477 347,361 5,028 - - 101,291 - - 1,781,157 1,635,542 - 2,260
Interest and investment income 75,892 10,001 8,850 22,760 5,031 15,087 6,007 2,893 146,521 119,260 554 510
Other investing activities - - - - - - - - - - - (47)
Net cash provided by investing activities...............c.coovevvverennns 136,472 59,729 8,850 22,760 5,031 23,407 6,007 2,893 265,149 162,173 554 2,723
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 53,634 66,611 47,638 (23,379) (33,823) (301,494) 53,374 (6,993) (144,432) 182,203 8,101 (27,794)
Cash and cash equivalents-beginning of year . 1,801,082 479,236 326,242 895,927 175,380 727,184 192,761 99,646 4,697,458 4,515,255 32,030 59,824
Cash and cash equivalents-end of year..............cccococovviiniincnnenns $ 1854716 $ 545847 $ 3738380 $ 872,548 $ 141557 $ 425690 $ 246,135 $ 92,653 $ 4553026 $ 4,697,458 $ 40,131 $ 32,030

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With comparative financial information year ended June 30, 2019)
(In Thousands)

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Major Funds
San San General San
Francisco Francisco Hetch Hetchy Municipal Hospital Francisco Laguna Governmental Activities -
International Water Water and  Transportation Medical Wastewater Port of San Honda Total Internal Service Funds
Airport Enterprise Power Agency Center Enterprise Francisco Hospital 2020 2019 2020 2019
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 12,807 $ 185234 $ 32,258 $ (1,040,321) $  (152,044) $ 81,869 $  (18352) $  (82,293) $  (980,842) $  (490,709) $ 1,745 $ (3,471)
Adjustments for non-cash and other activities:
Depreciation and amortization 312,118 142,228 20,999 205,112 21,689 62,967 26,379 12,381 803,873 720,576 3,595 2,859
Provision for uncollectible: 16,767 781 1,797 14 - 908 6,176 - 26,443 2,584 - -
Write-off of capital assets - 5,285 12,237 - - 4,728 - - 22,250 15,773 - -
Other, 1,929 - - - - - - - 1,929 3,177 162 43
Changes in assets and deferred outflows of resources/liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources:
Receivables, net (1,959) (6,928) 1,167 79 (52,914) (949) (6,456) (15,361) (83,321) (104,399) 5,628 18,590
Due from other funds - 323 (1,731) - - (129) - 4,165 2,628 40,299 - -
Inventorie: (5,632) (351) (181) (8,246) (2,631) (192) (235) (302) (17,770) 1,882 - -
Other assets 257 - 1,732 (302) - - 150 - 1,837 (4,998) - -
Accounts payable 3,700 (2,050) 6,119 (6,080) 6,939 1,912 (486) 1,463 11,517 (110,629) 8,065 (6,242)
Accrued payroll 2,843 1,548 778 2,743 4,686 858 405 1,715 15,576 6,613 410 (112)
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay...........c.ccccceiiiiiiiiiciiinn 3,604 1,520 652 5,639 5,145 1,637 527 1,491 20,215 1,324 587 134
Accrued workers' compensation 300 (1,162) (112) 5,380 412 137 9 642 5,606 18,625 (114) (62)
Estimated claims payable - (742) 602 36,016 - (477 - - 35,399 (1,311) - -
Due to other funds - 674 (1,501) 37 - 1 2,796 - 2,007 (850) 20 -
Unearned revenues and other abilities..........................cccooorerreeees (3.392) (2,505) 163 (2,202) (358) 890 (1,900) 6,637 (2,667) (19,891) 3,019 (3,226)
Net pension liability and pension related deferred outflows and
inflows of resources 24,680 (7,351) 1,610 (957) 12,141 (1,603) (2,392) (6,972) 19,156 (54,727) (2,378) (2,480)
Net OPERB liability and OPEB related deferred outflows and
inflows of resource: 5473 (3,739) 1,275 16,145 7,517 (1,562) 112 597 25,818 6,638 2,126 2,734
Total adjustment 360,688 127,531 45,606 253,378 2,626 69,126 25,085 6,456 890,496 520,686 21,120 12,238
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activitie $ 373495 $ 312,765 $ 77,864 $ (786,943) $  (149,418) $ 150,995 $ 6,733 $ (75837) $ (90,346) $ 29,977 $ 22,865 $ 8,767
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
to the statement of net position:
Deposits and investments with City Treasury:
Unrestricted $ 515,525 $ 451,499 $ 355,051 $ 731,318 $ 141,354 $ 351,915 $ 184,754 $ - $ 2,731,416 $ 2,452,211 $ 33807 $ 25,465
Restricted 1,332,563 - 17,828 117,017 - 55,132 55,958 92,527 1,671,025 2,066,933 - -
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury:
Unrestricted 18,952 353 2 3,382 8 356 5 2 23,060 14,988 - -
Restricted 830,789 97,562 3,946 20,831 195 21,504 5,691 124 980,642 1,021,214 6,324 6,565
Total deposits and investments 2,697,829 549,414 376,827 872,548 141,557 428,907 246,408 92,653 5,406,143 5,555,346 40,131 32,030
Less: Investments outside City Treasury not
meeting the definition of cash equivalents...............ccccoovreiennns (843,113) (3,567) (2,947) - - (3,217) (273) - (853,117) (857,888) - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
on statement of cash flows $ 1854716 $ 545847 $ 373880 $ 872548 $ 141557  $ 425690 $ 246,135 $ 92,653 $ 4553026 $ 4,697,458 $ 40,131 $ 32,030
Non-cash capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets on accounts payable
and capital lease, $ 140,882 $ 29,951 $ 11,738  $ - 8 - 8 85355 $ 2840 $ - $ 270,766 $ 239,383 $ - 8 74
Tenant improvements financed by rent credits............ccccccvvecenne - - - - - - - - - 90 - -
Net capitalized interest 62,828 27,164 1,127 5,484 - 28,563 22 - 125,188 155,746 - -
Donated inventory. - - - - 1,833 - - - 1,833 1,746 - -
Capital contributions and other noncash capital items.. . - 63,600 - - - - 25,997 - 89,597 (188) - -
Bond refunding through fiscal agent 331 - - - - - - (113,185) (112,854) 18,134 - -
Bond proceeds held by fiscal agent. 157,352 - - - - - - 100,733 258,085 577,510 - -
Commercial paper repaid through fiscal agent............coceovvevrvinenens 49,410 - - - - - - - 49,410 431,945 - -
Interfund loan. - 674 847 - - 849 - - 2,370 955 - -
Capital assets received from Succcessor AGENCY.........cccevevevrenne - - - - - - - - - 19,966 - -
Debt assumed from SUCCESSOr AGENCY........c.ovvrucueerenieerereiereireneens - - - - - - - - - (6,144) - -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2020
(In Thousands)

Pension, Other
Employee and

Other Post-
Employment
Benefit Trust Investment Private-Purpose
Funds Trust Fund Trust Fund Agency Funds
ASSETS
Deposits and investments with City Treasury............ccoceeveererieieseens $ 162,045 $ 290,970 $ 242756 $ 350,439
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury:
Cash and deposits 44,386 - - 24
Short-term investments.. 532,617 - - -
Debt securities......... . 2,233,295 - - -
EQUILY SECUNIES ...ttt 8,935,027 - - -
REAI ASSEES.....cvii ittt e aree s 3,840,427 - - -
Private equity and other alternative investments............ccccccoeevveeenne. 11,099,962 - - -
Foreign currency contracts, net (116) - - -
Invested in securities lending collateral 547,047 - - -
Receivables:
Employer and employee contributions.............c.cceoeiviiiiicninicens 47,947 - - 174,884
Brokers, general partners and Others............ccoceveieiieniene s eieenee 463,531 - - -
Federal and state grants and subventions.............cccccovvvveieniineiens - - 404 -
INtErest AN OthET...........oouiiiiiee e 14,749 1,340 4,327 152,698
Loans (net of allowance for uncollectible amounts) - - 1,471 -
Other assets 2,602 - 1,756 45,537
Restricted assets:
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury..........c.ccocererernenns - - 326,640 -
Capital assets:
Land and other assets not being depreciated.............cccoeverrirenne - - 4,152 -
Facilities, infrastructure and equipment, net of depreciation.............. - - 4 -
TOtAl ASSELS...uiiuiiiiieiieie st st sttt ara e 27,923,519 292,310 581,510 723,582
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unamortized loss on refunding of debt..............ccooeviiiiiiiiniiies - - 41,440 -
Deferred outflows related to pensions.............ccccoecoerriccincciieeennns - - 6,373 -
Deferred outflows related to OPEB...........cccocvveiviieeeiiiee et 1,587 - 3,554 -
Total deferred outflows of resources.........cccoeveeeeeceeecieeceeenenn, 1,587 - 51,367 -
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNES PAYADIE........cviiiieiieiiriee s 37,792 3 97,279 58,947
Estimated claims payable.............cooiiiiiiii 27,025 - - -
Due to the primary government - - 5,210 -
Agency obligations............... . - - - 664,635
Accrued interest payable.. - - 13,730 -
Payable to brokers............... 41,491 - - -
Payable to borrowers of securities 547,029 - - -
Other ADIlItIES..........cveirirecerrec s 3,179 - 1,003 -
Advance from primary governmMeNt............cccevereeeererenieeneseseenee e - - 4,669 -
Long-term obligations............cccoveiiiiiiccieee e - - 933,869 -
Net pension liability. - - 29,803 -
Net other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability. 12,799 - 4,344 -
Total liabilities 669,315 3 1,089,907 723,582
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to PENSIONS..........cccovviirieienisiee e - - 4,095 -
Deferred inflows related to OPEB..... 1,239 - 13 -
Total deferred inflows of reSOUrCes..........coceeevveviiiieeciciieeeeee. 1,239 - 4,108 -
NET POSITION
Restricted for pension and other employee benefits...........cccccoeieene 27,254,552 - - -
Held for external pool participants....................... . - 292,307 - -
Held for Redevelopment Agency dissolution - - (461,138) -
Total NEt POSIION. ......cveuiiieieeee e 27,254552 $ 292,307 $ (461,138) $ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2020
(In Thousands)

Pension, Other
Employee and
Other Post-

Employment
Benefit Trust Investment Private-Purpose
Funds Trust Fund Trust Fund
Additions:
Redevelopment property taxX reVenues...........ccoeeveereereeennens $ - % - % 156,495
Charges for SEIVICES. .......cooiiiieieiiie e - - 20,487
Contributions:
Employee contributions.............ccooeiiniieninicicneeeeee 625,641 - -
Employer CONtribUtioNS..........ccoviieeiiie e 1,814,298 - -
Contributions to pooled iNvestments............cccocveveeneennenn - 3,097,428 -
Total CoONtriDULIONS........ccvviiiiiiiiiee e 2,439,939 3,097,428 176,982
Investment income (expenses):
IMEEIEST .. es 89,360 8,446 8,230
Dividends 108,344 - -
Net appreciation in fair value of investments...............c........ 840,954 - -
Securities 1ending INCOME.........ccccvviieeiiiie e 1,313 - -
Total iINVeStMENt INCOME........cccvveeeeieiiieee e 1,039,971 8,446 8,230
Less investment expenses:
Other investment expenses.... (46,752) - -
Net iInvestment iINCOME.........ccceviieeiieie e 993,219 8,446 8,230
Other additionsS............coccviiiee i - - 4,051
Total additions, NEL.........cocvieeririeeereee e 3,433,158 3,105,874 189,263
Deductions:
Neighborhood development.............ccccoiiiiiiiiiiineneeeee, - - 121,542
(D= o] (=T ox =11 o o F PR UR - - 9
INterest ON debt...........ooooviiviiiiicee e - - 43,564
Benefit PayMENtS........ccoo i 2,702,632 - -
Refunds of contributions...........cccceceiiiiniinciee e 17,036 - -
Distribution from pooled investments...........cccccocvveviieeiinenns - 3,289,637 -
AdMINIStrative EXPENSES........cceeieirieiieeieesiee e 20,384 - 14,315
Total dedUCLIONS.........ciiciiieeicciee e 2,740,052 3,289,637 179,430
Change in Nt POSItION. .........coveeeririeiere e 693,106 (183,763) 9,833
Net position at beginning of year...........ccccvviviviieecce e, 26,561,446 476,070 (470,971)
Net position at end Of YEar.........cccereeriinerierenereee e $ 27,254552 % 292,307 $ (461,138)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2020
(Dollars in Thousands)

(1) THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

San Francisco is a city and county chartered by the State of California and as such can exercise the
powers as both a city and a county under state law. As required by generally accepted accounting
principles, the accompanying financial statements present the City and County of San Francisco (the
City or primary government) and its component units. The component units discussed below are
included in the City’s reporting entity because of the significance of their operations or financial
relationships with the City.

As a government agency, the City is exempt from both federal income taxes and California State
franchise taxes.

Blended Component Units

Following is a description of those legally separate component units for which the City is financially
accountable that are blended with the primary government because of their individual governance or
financial relationships to the City.

San Francisco County Transportation Authority (Transportation Authority) — The voters of the City
created the Transportation Authority in 1989 to impose voter-approved sales and use tax of one-half of
one percent, for a period not to exceed 20 years, to fund essential traffic and transportation projects. In
2003, the voters approved Proposition K, extending the city-wide one-half of one percent sales tax with
a new 30-year plan. A board consisting of the eleven members of the City’s Board of Supervisors
serving ex officio governs the Transportation Authority. The Transportation Authority is reported in a
special revenue fund in the City’s basic financial statements. Financial statements for the
Transportation Authority can be obtained from their finance and administrative offices at 1455 Market
Street, 22" Floor, San Francisco, CA 94103.

San Francisco City and County Finance Corporation (Finance Corporation) — The Finance Corporation
was created in 1990 by a vote of the electorate to allow the City to lease-purchase $20.0 million (plus
5.0 percent per year growth) of equipment using tax-exempt obligations. Although legally separate from
the City, the Finance Corporation is reported as if it were part of the primary government because its
sole purpose is to provide lease financing to the City. The Finance Corporation is governed by a three-
member board of directors approved by the Mayor and the Board of Supervisors. The Finance
Corporation is reported as an internal service fund. Financial statements for the Finance Corporation
can be obtained from their administrative offices at City Hall, Room 336, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett
Place, San Francisco, CA 94102.

San Francisco Parking Authority (Parking Authority) — The Parking Authority was created in October
1949 to provide services exclusively to the City. In accordance with Proposition D authorized by the
City’s electorate in November 1988, a City Charter amendment created the Parking and Traffic
Commission (PTC). The PTC consists of five commissioners appointed by the Mayor. Upon creation
of the PTC, the responsibility to oversee the City’s off-street parking operations was transferred from
the Parking Authority to the PTC. The staff and fiscal operations of the Parking Authority were also
incorporated into the PTC. Beginning on July 1, 2002, the responsibility for overseeing the operations
of the PTC became the responsibility of the Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA) pursuant to
Proposition E, which was passed by the voters in November 1999. Separate financial statements are
not prepared for the Parking Authority. Further information about the Parking Authority can be obtained
from the SFMTA Chief Financial Officer at 1 South Van Ness Avenue, 3" Floor, San Francisco, CA
94103.
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Discretely Presented Component Unit

Treasure Island Development Authority (TIDA) — The TIDA is a nonprofit public benefit corporation. The
TIDA was authorized in accordance with the Treasure Island Conversion Act of 1997. Seven
commissioners who are appointed by the Mayor, subject to confirmation by the City’s Board of
Supervisors, govern the TIDA. The specific purpose of the TIDA is to promote the planning,
redevelopment, reconstruction, rehabilitation, reuse, and conversion of the property known as Naval
Station Treasure Island for the public interest, convenience, welfare, and common benefit of the
inhabitants of the City. The TIDA has adopted as its mission the creation of affordable housing and
economic development opportunities on Treasure Island.

The TIDA's governing body is not substantively the same as that of the City and does not provide
services entirely or almost entirely to the City. The TIDA is reported in a separate column to emphasize
that it is legally separate from the City. The City is financially accountable for the TIDA through the
appointment of the TIDA’s Board and the ability of the City to approve the TIDA’s budget. Disclosures
related to the TIDA, where significant, are separately identified throughout these notes. Separate
financial statements are not prepared for TIDA. Further information about TIDA can be obtained from
their administrative offices at 1 Avenue of the Palms, Suite 241, Treasure Island, San Francisco, CA
94130.

Fiduciary Component Unit

Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City and County of San Francisco (Successor
Agency) — The Successor Agency was created on February 1, 2012, to serve as a custodian for the
assets and to wind down the affairs of the former San Francisco Redevelopment Agency pursuant to
California Redevelopment Dissolution Law. The Successor Agency is governed by the Successor
Agency Commission, commonly known as the Commission on Community Investment and
Infrastructure, and is a separate public entity from the City. The Commission has five members, which
serve at the pleasure of the City’s Mayor and are subject to confirmation by the Board of Supervisors.
The City is financially accountable for the Successor Agency through the appointment of the
Commission and a requirement that the Board of Supervisors approve the Successor Agency’s annual
budget.

The financial statements present the Successor Agency and its component units, entities for which the
Successor Agency is considered to be financially accountable. The City and County of San Francisco
Redevelopment Financing Authority (Financing Authority) is a joint powers authority formed between
the former Agency and the City to facilitate the long-term financing of the former Agency activities. The
Financing Authority is included as a blended component unit in the Successor Agency’s financial
statements because the Financing Authority provides services entirely to the Successor Agency.

Per the Redevelopment Dissolution Law, certain actions of the Successor Agency are also subject to
the direction of an Oversight Board. The Oversight Board is comprised of seven-member
representatives from local government bodies: four City representatives appointed by the Mayor of the
City subject to confirmation by the Board of Supervisors of the City; the Vice Chancellor of the San
Francisco Community College District; the Board member of the Bay Area Rapid Transit District; and
the Executive Director of Policy and Operations of the San Francisco Unified School District.

In general, the Successor Agency’s assets can only be used to pay enforceable obligations in existence
at the date of dissolution (including the completion of any unfinished projects that were subject to legally
enforceable contractual commitments). In future fiscal years, the Successor Agency will only be
allocated revenues in the amount that is necessary to pay the estimated annual installment payments
on enforceable obligations of the former Agency until all enforceable obligations of the former Agency
have been paid in full and all assets have been liquidated. Based upon the nature of the Successor
Agency’s custodial role, the Successor Agency is reported in a fiduciary fund (private-purpose trust
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fund). Complete financial statements can be obtained from the Successor Agency'’s finance department
at 1 South Van Ness Avenue, 5" Floor, San Francisco, CA 94103.

Non-Disclosed Organizations

There are other governmental agencies that provide services within the City. These entities have
independent governing boards and the City is not financially accountable for them. The City’s basic
financial statements, except for certain cash held by the City as an agent, do not reflect operations of
the San Francisco Airport Improvement Corporation, San Francisco Health Authority, San Francisco
Housing Authority, San Francisco Unified School District and San Francisco Community College
District. The City is represented in two regional agencies, the Bay Area Rapid Transit District and the
Bay Area Air Quality Management District, both of which are also excluded from the City’s reporting
entity.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(&) Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely, to a
significant extent, on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from its legally separate component unit for which the primary government is financially
accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with
a specific function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment, and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns
in the fund financial statements.

The basic financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information. This
information is presented only to facilitate financial analysis and is not at the level of detail required for
a presentation in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such
information should be read in conjunction with the City's basic financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2019, from which the summarized information was derived.

(b) Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Agency funds, however, report only assets and liabilities and cannot be said to have a
measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability
is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as
all eligibility requirements have been met.
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Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The
City considers property tax revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of
the current fiscal period. All other revenues are considered to be available if they are generally collected
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. It is the City’s policy to submit reimbursement and
claim requests for federal and state grant revenues within 30 days of the end of the program cycle and
payment is generally received within the first or second quarter of the following fiscal year. Expenditures
generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to vacation, sick leave, claims and judgments, are
recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, other local taxes, grants and subventions, licenses, charges for services, rents and
concessions, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered susceptible to
accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items
are considered to be measurable and available only when the City receives cash.

The City reports the following major governmental fund:

= The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
City except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The City reports the following major proprietary (enterprise) funds:

= The San Francisco International Airport Fund accounts for the activities of the City-owned
commercial service airport in the San Francisco Bay Area.

= The San Francisco Water Enterprise Fund accounts for the activities of the San Francisco Water
Enterprise (Water Enterprise). The Water Enterprise is engaged in the distribution of water to the
City and certain suburban areas.

= The Hetch Hetchy Water and Power Enterprise Fund accounts for the activities of Hetch Hetchy
Water and Power (Hetch Hetchy) and CleanPowerSF. Hetch Hetchy is engaged in the collection
and conveyance of approximately 85.0% of the City’s water supply and in the generation and
transmission of electricity. CleanPowerSF aggregates the buying power of customers in San
Francisco to purchase renewable energy.

= The Municipal Transportation Agency Fund accounts for the activities of the Municipal
Transportation Agency (SFMTA). The SFMTA was established by Proposition E, passed by the
City’s voters in November 1999. The SFMTA includes the San Francisco Municipal Railway (Muni)
and the operations of Sustainable Streets, which includes the Parking Authority. Muni was
established in 1912 and is responsible for the operations of the City’s public transportation system.
Sustainable Streets is responsible for proposing and implementing street and traffic changes and
oversees the City’s off-street parking operations. Sustainable Streets is a separate department of
the SFMTA. The parking garages fund accounts for the activities of various non-profit corporations
formed by the Parking Authority to provide financial and other assistance to the City to acquire land,
construct facilities, and manage various parking facilities.

= The General Hospital Medical Center Fund accounts for the activities of the San Francisco
General Hospital (SFGH), a City-owned acute care hospital.

= The San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise Fund was created after the San Francisco voters
approved a proposition in 1976, authorizing the City to issue $240.0 million in bonds for the purpose
of acquiring, constructing, improving, and financing improvements to the City’s municipal sewage
treatment and disposal system.
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The Port of San Francisco Fund accounts for the operation, development, and maintenance of
seven and one-half miles of waterfront property of the Port of San Francisco (Port). This was
established in 1969 after the San Francisco voters approved a proposition to accept the transfer of
the Harbor of San Francisco from the State of California.

The Laguna Honda Hospital Fund accounts for the activities of Laguna Honda Hospital (LHH),
the City-owned skilled nursing facility, which specializes in serving elderly and disabled residents.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of property taxes and other revenues for
periodic payment of interest and principal on general obligation and certain lease revenue bonds
and related authorized costs.

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt service or
capital projects.

The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources that are restricted,
committed or assigned to expenditures for the acquisition of land or acquisition and construction of
major facilities other than those financed in the proprietary fund types.

The Permanent Fund accounts for resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only
earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support specific programs.

The Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by one City
department to another City department on a cost-reimbursement basis. Internal Service Funds
account for the activities of the equipment maintenance services, centralized printing and mailing
services, centralized telecommunications and information services, and lease financing through
the Finance Corporation.

The Pension, Other Employee and Other Postemployment Benefit Trust Funds reflect the
activities of the Employees’ Retirement System (Retirement System), the Health Service System
and the Retiree Health Care Trust Fund. The Retirement System accounts for employee
contributions, City contributions, and the earnings and profits from investments. It also accounts for
the disbursements made for employee retirement benefits, withdrawals, disability and death
benefits as well as administrative expenses. The Health Service System accounts for contributions
from active and retired employees and surviving spouses, City contributions, and the earnings and
profits from investments. It also accounts for the disbursements to various health plans and health
care providers for the medical expenses of beneficiaries. The Retiree Health Care Trust Fund
currently accounts for other postemployment benefit contributions from the City and the San
Francisco Community College District, together with the earnings and profits from investments.

The Investment Trust Fund accounts for the external portion of the Treasurer’s Office investment
pool. The funds of the San Francisco Community College District, San Francisco Unified School
District, the Trial Courts of the State of California and the Transbay Joint Powers Authority are
accounted for within the Investment Trust Fund.

The Private-Purpose Trust Fund accounts for the custodial responsibilities that are assigned to
the Successor Agency with the passage of the Redevelopment Dissolution Law.

The Agency Funds account for the resources held by the City in a custodial capacity on behalf of:
the State of California and other governmental agencies; employees for payroll deductions; and
human welfare, community health, and transportation programs.

The City applies all applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.
In general, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this rule are charges to other City departments from the General Fund, Water
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Enterprise and Hetch Hetchy. These charges have not been eliminated because elimination would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported in the statement of activities.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the fund’s principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise and internal service funds
are charges for customer services including: water, sewer and power charges, public transportation
fees, airline fees and charges, parking fees, hospital patient service fees, commercial and industrial
rents, printing services, vehicle maintenance fees, and telecommunication and information system
support charges. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost
of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

(c) Deposits and Investments
Investment in the Treasurer’s Pool

The Treasurer invests on behalf of most funds of the City and external participants in accordance with
the City’s investment policy and the California State Government Code. The City Treasurer, who reports
on a monthly basis to the Board of Supervisors, manages the Treasurer’s pool. In addition, the function
of the County Treasury Oversight Committee is to review and monitor the City’s investment policy and
to monitor compliance with the investment policy and reporting provisions of the law through an annual
audit.

The Treasurer’s investment pool consists of two components: 1) pooled deposits and investments and
2) dedicated investment funds. The dedicated investment funds represent restricted funds and relate
to bond issues of the Enterprise Funds, and the General Fund’s cash reserve requirement. In addition
to the Treasurer’s investment pool, the City has other funds that are held by trustees. These funds are
related to the issuance of bonds and certain loan programs of the City. The investments of the
Retirement System and of the Retiree Health Care Trust Fund are held by trustees.

The San Francisco Unified School District (School District), San Francisco Community College District
(Community College District), and the City are involuntary participants in the City’s investment pool. As
of June 30, 2020, involuntary participants accounted for approximately 97.0 percent of the pool.
Voluntary participants accounted for 3.0 percent of the pool. Further, the School District, Community
College District, and the Trial Courts of the State of California are external participants of the City’s
pool. At June 30, 2020, $291.0 million was held on behalf of these external participants. The total
percentage share of the City’s pool that relates to these four external participants is 2.4 percent. Internal
participants accounted for 97.6 percent of the pool.

Investment Valuation

Investments are carried at fair value, except for certain non-negotiable investments that are reported
at cost because they are not transferable and have terms that are not affected by changes in market
interest rates, such as collateralized certificates of deposit and public time deposits. The fair value of
investments is determined monthly and is based on current market prices. The fair value of participants’
position in the pool approximates the value of the pool shares. The method used to determine the value
of participants’ equity is based on the book value of the participants’ percentage participation. In the
event that a certain fund overdraws its share of pooled cash, the overdraft is covered by the General
Fund and a payable to the General Fund is established in the City’s basic financial statements.
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Retirement System — Investments are reported at fair value. Securities traded on national or
international exchanges are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. Securities
that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair value derived from third-party
pricing services. Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on a trade date basis.

The fair values of the partnership interests, which include private equity, real assets, private credit, and
some public equity investments are based on net asset values (NAV) provided by the general partners
and investment managers.

The Absolute Return Program invests in limited partnerships and other alternative investment vehicles.
The most common investment strategies include, but are not limited to equity, credit, macro, emerging
markets, quantitative, multi-strategy, special situations/other, co-investments and commodities. These
investments are valued using their respective NAV and are audited annually. The most significant input
into the NAV of such an entity is the fair value of its investment holdings. These holdings are typically
valued on a monthly basis by each fund’s independent administrator and for certain illiquid investments,
where no market exists, the General Partner may provide pricing input. The management assumptions
are based upon the nature of the investment and the underlying business. Investments have the
potential to become illiquid under stressed market conditions and, in certain circumstances, investors
may be subject to redemption restrictions which can impede the timely return of capital. The valuation
techniques vary based upon investment type but are predominantly derived from observed market
prices.

San Francisco International Airport — The Airport has entered into certain derivative instruments, which
it values at fair value, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Derivative Instruments, and GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. The
Airport applies hedge accounting for changes in the fair value of hedging derivative instruments, in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting
Termination Provisions, an amendment of GASB Statement No. 53. Under hedge accounting, if the
derivatives are determined to be effective hedges, the changes in the fair value of hedging derivative
instruments are reported as either deferred inflows or deferred outflows in the statement of net position,
otherwise changes in fair value are recorded within the investment revenue classification.

Other funds — Non-pooled investments are also generally carried at fair value. However, money market
investments (such as short-term, highly liquid debt instruments including commercial paper and
bankers’ acceptances) that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less and
nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts (such as repurchase agreements and
guaranteed or bank investment contracts) are carried at amortized cost. The fair value of non-pooled
investments is determined annually and is based on current market prices. The fair value of investments
in open-end mutual funds is determined based on the fund’s current share price.

Investment Income

Income from pooled investments is allocated at month end to the individual funds or external
participants based on the fund or participant’s average daily cash balance in relation to total pooled
investments. City management has determined that the investment income related to certain funds
should be allocated to the General Fund. On a budget basis, the interest income is recorded in the
General Fund. On a generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) basis, the income is reported in
the fund where the related investments reside. A transfer is then recorded to transfer an amount equal
to the interest earnings to the General Fund. This is the case for certain other governmental and internal
service funds.

It is the City’s policy to charge interest at month end to those funds that have a negative average daily

cash balance. In certain instances, City management has determined that the interest expense related
to the fund should be allocated to the General Fund. On a budget basis, the interest expense is
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recorded in the General Fund. On a GAAP basis, the interest expense is recorded in the fund and then
a transfer from the General Fund for an amount equal to the interest expense is made to the fund. This
is the case for certain other funds, LHH, SFGH, and the internal service funds.

Interest income related to certain funds in fiduciary activities that are recorded in the General Fund on
a budget basis, are recorded as other income instead of transfer in the GAAP basis. This is the case
for certain Agency Funds.

(d) Loans Receivable

The Mayor’s Office of Housing (MOH) and the Mayor’s Office of Community Development (MOCD)
administer several housing and small business subsidy programs and issue loans to qualified
applicants. In addition, the Department of Building Inspection manages other receivables from
organizations. Management has determined through policy that many of these loans may be forgiven
or renegotiated and extended long into the future if certain terms and conditions of the loans are met.
At June 30, 2020, it was determined that $1,746.7 million of the $1,891.4 million loan portfolio is not
expected to be ultimately collected.

For the purposes of the fund financial statements, the governmental funds expenditures relating to long-
term loans arising from loan subsidy programs are charged to operations upon funding and the loans
are recorded, net of an estimated allowance for potentially uncollectible loans, with an offset to a
deferred inflow of resources. For purposes of the government-wide financial statements, long-term
loans are not offset by deferred inflows of resources.

(e) Inventories

Inventories recorded in the governmental funds consist of personal protective equipment and supplies
related to the COVID-19 pandemic. Inventories recorded in the proprietary funds primarily consist of
construction materials and maintenance supplies, as well as pharmaceutical supplies maintained by
the hospitals. Generally, proprietary funds value inventory at cost or average cost and expense supply
inventory as it is consumed. This is referred to as the consumption method of inventory accounting.

(f) Property Held for Resale

Property held for resale includes both residential and commercial property and is recorded as other
assets at the lower of estimated cost or estimated conveyance value. Estimated conveyance value is
management’s estimate of net realizable value of each property parcel based on its current intended
use. Property held for resale may, during the period it is held by the City, generate rental income, which
is recognized as it becomes due and is considered collectible.

(g) Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, facilities and improvements, machinery and equipment,
infrastructure assets, and intangible assets, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary and private-
purpose trust funds. Capital assets, except for intangible assets, are defined as assets with an initial
individual cost of more than $5 and have an estimated life that extends beyond a single reporting period
or more than a year. Intangible assets have a capitalization threshold of $100. Such assets are recorded
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date of donation. Capital outlay is recorded as
expenditures of the General Fund and other governmental funds and as assets in the government-wide
financial statements to the extent the City’s capitalization threshold is met. Interest incurred during the
construction phase of the capital assets of business-type activities is reflected in the capitalized value
of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds of tax-exempt debt over the
same period. Amortization of assets acquired under capital leases is included in depreciation and
amortization.
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Facilities and improvements, infrastructure, machinery and equipment, easements, and intangible
assets of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated using the straight-
line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Facilities and improvements 15t0 175
Infrastructure 15t0 70
Machinery and equipment 2t0 75
Intangible assets Varies with type

Works of art, historical treasures and zoological animals held for public exhibition, education, or
research in furtherance of public service, rather than financial gain, are not capitalized. These items
are protected, kept unencumbered, cared for, and preserved by the City. It is the City’s policy to utilize
proceeds from the sale of these items for the acquisition of other items for collection and display.

(h) Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave Pay

Vacation pay, which may be accumulated up to ten weeks depending on an employee’s length of
service, is payable upon termination. Sick leave may be accumulated up to six months. Unused
amounts accumulated prior to December 6, 1978, are vested and payable upon termination of
employment by retirement or disability caused by industrial accident or death.

The City accrues for all salary-related items in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements for which they are liable to make a payment directly and incrementally associated with
payments made for compensated absences on termination. The City includes its share of social security
and Medicare payments made on behalf of the employees in the accrual for vacation and sick leave

pay.

(i) Bond Issuance Costs, Premiums, Discounts, and Interest Accretion

In the government-wide financial statements, the proprietary fund type and fiduciary fund type financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, proprietary fund or fiduciary fund statement of net
position. Bond issuance costs related to prepaid insurance costs, bond premiums and discounts for
San Francisco International Airport, San Francisco Water Enterprise, Hetch Hetchy Water and Power,
SFMTA, and San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise are amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method. The remaining bond prepaid insurance costs, bond premiums and discounts
are calculated using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts as other
financing sources and uses, respectively. Issuance costs including bond insurance costs, whether or
not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Interest accreted on capital appreciation bonds is reported as accrued interest payable in the
government-wide, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements.
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() Fund Equity
Governmental Fund Balance

As prescribed by GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions, governmental funds report fund balance in one of five classifications that comprise a
hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific
purposes for which amounts in the funds can be spent. The five fund balance classifications are as
follows:

= Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable
form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The not in spendable form criterion
includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash, such as prepaid amounts, as well as
certain long-term receivables that would otherwise be classified as unassigned.

= Restricted — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes due to constraints
imposed by external resource providers, by the City’s Charter, or by enabling legislation.
Restrictions may effectively be changed or lifted only with the consent of resource providers.

= Committed — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to an
ordinance passed by the Board of Supervisors and signed by the Mayor. Commitments may be
changed or lifted only by the City taking the same formal action that imposed the constraint
originally.

= Assigned —includes amounts that are not classified as nonspendable, restricted, or committed, but
are intended to be used by the City for specific purposes. Intent is expressed by legislation or by
action of the Board of Supervisors or the City Controller to which legislation has delegated the
authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes.

= Unassigned — is the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all amounts not
contained in the other classifications. Unassigned amounts are technically available for any
purpose. Other governmental funds may only report a negative unassigned balance that was
created after classification in one of the other four fund balance categories.

In circumstances when an expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in
multiple fund balance classifications, fund balance is generally depleted in the order of restricted,
committed, assigned, and unassigned.

Encumbrances

The City establishes encumbrances to record the amount of purchase orders, contracts, and other
obligations, which have not yet been fulfilled, cancelled, or discharged. Encumbrances outstanding at
year end are recorded as part of restricted or assigned fund balance.

Net Position

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net
position is categorized as net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted.

= Net Investment In Capital Assets — This category groups all capital assets, including infrastructure,
into one component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of
debt, including debt related deferred outflows and inflows of resources, that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of these assets reduce the balance in this category.

= Restricted Net Position — This category represents net position that has external restrictions

imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and
restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
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= Unrestricted Net Position — This category represents net position of the City, not restricted for any
project or other purpose.

(k) Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers are generally recorded as transfers in (out) except for certain types of transactions
that are described below.

= Charges for services are recorded as revenues of the performing fund and expenditures/expenses
of the requesting fund. Unbilled costs are recognized as an asset of the performing fund and a
liability of the requesting fund at the end of the fiscal year.

= Reimbursements for expenditures, initially made by one fund, which are properly applicable to
another fund, are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of
expenditures in the fund that is reimbursed.

() Refunding of Debt

In governmental and business-type activities and proprietary and fiduciary funds, losses or gains from
advance refundings are recorded as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources,
respectively, and amortized into expense.

(m) Pollution Remediation Obligations

Pollution remediation obligations are measured at their current value using a cost-accumulation
approach, based on the pollution remediation outlays expected to be incurred to settle those
obligations. Each obligation or obligating event is measured as the sum of probability-weighted
amounts in a range of possible estimated amounts. Some estimates of ranges of possible cash flows
may be limited to a few discrete scenarios or a single scenario, such as the amount specified in a
contract for pollution remediation services.

(n) Cash Flows

Statements of cash flows are presented for proprietary fund types. Cash and cash equivalents include
all unrestricted and restricted highly liquid investments with original purchase maturities of three months
or less. Pooled cash and investments in the City’s Treasury represent monies in a cash management
pool and such accounts are similar in nature to demand deposits.

(o) Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the SFERS and the
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans and additions to/deductions from
the plans’ fiduciary net positions have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the
plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Plan member contributions are recognized
in the period in which the contributions are due. Investments are reported at fair value.

(p) Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to
OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Retiree Health Care
Trust Fund (RHCTF) and California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust Fund Program (CERBT) and
additions to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis
as they are reported by the plans. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period
in which the contributions are due. Investments are reported at fair value.
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(g) Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of the City’s governmental activities, enterprise and internal service funds bonds, as
well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the
statement of net position because the use of the proceeds is limited by applicable bond covenants and
resolutions. Restricted assets account for the principal and interest amounts accumulated to pay debt
service, unspent bond proceeds, and amounts restricted for future capital projects.

(r) Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

The City records deferred outflows or inflows of resources in its governmental, proprietary, fiduciary,
and government-wide financial statements for consumption or acquisition of net position that is
applicable to a future reporting period. These financial statement elements are distinct from assets and
liabilities.

In governmental fund statements, deferred inflows of resources consist of revenues not collected within
the availability period after fiscal year end. In government-wide financial statements, deferred outflows
and inflows of resources are recorded for unamortized losses and gains on refunding of debt, deferred
outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB, and deferred outflows of resources
on derivative instruments.

(s) Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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(3) RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) Explanation of certain differences between the governmental funds balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net position

Total fund balances of the City’s governmental funds, $5,039,876 differs from net position of
governmental activities, $3,133,622 reported in the statement of net position. The difference primarily
results from the long-term economic focus in the statement of net position versus the current financial
resources focus in the governmental funds balance sheet.

Total Long-term Internal Reclassi- Statement of
Governmental Assets, Service ficationsand  Net Position
Funds Liabilities @ Funds®  Eliminations Totals
Assets
Deposits and investments with City Treasury $ 6,728,540 $ - $ 33807 $ - $ 6,762,347
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury 310,700 - 6,324 - 317,024
Receivables, net
Property taxes and penalties..............cuvviiiviieiiiiiinneeneiiins 184,652 - - - 184,652
Other local taxes 398,577 - - - 398,577
Federal and state grants and subventions 324,931 - - - 324,931
Charges for senices 122,877 - 238 - 123,115
Interest and other.... . 30,303 - 351 - 30,654
Due from other funds...........coooeuiiiiieiie e 21,108 - - (21,108) -
Due from component units 15,726 - - - 15,726
Advance to component unit 4,669 - - - 4,669
Loans receivable, Net...........couuiiiiieiiiieeee e, 144,684 - - - 144,684
INVENEOTIES ... 44,703 - - - 44,703
Capital @SSetS, NEL.....iiiiieiiiiie e - 6,688,521 14,236 - 6,702,757
OtNEI @SSEES.....viiiiiiiiiiiie ettt 25,987 412 - - 26,399
TOtAl ASSEES...uuiiiieeiiiieeii e e e 8,357,457 6,688,933 54,956 (21,108) 15,080,238
Deferred outflows of resources
Unamortized loss on refunding of debt..............cccccccvvviiiiinnnns - 10,327 880 - 11,207
Deferred outflows related to pensions - 857,044 18,512 - 875,556
Deferred outflows related to OPEB - 268,481 6,222 - 274,703
Total deferred outflows of resources........................... - 1,135,852 25,614 - 1,161,466
Liabilities
AccouNts PayabIe..........uuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 556,270 - 10,247 - 566,517
Accrued payroll...........coooeiiiiiiii 141,084 - 2,660 - 143,744
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay..........ccooeeveviviiineeenennnnn - 193,590 4,172 - 197,762
Accrued workers' COMPENSALION. ...........uvrverreerreeriieereeeeiereeens - 290,548 1,583 - 292,131
Estimated claims payable............cccccccvviiiiii - 194,137 - - 194,137
Accrued interest payable.. - 20,776 883 - 21,659
Unearned grant and subvention revenues...............ooooeeeeeeenn. 187,824 - - - 187,824
DU€ t0 Other fUNGS..........cooiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiie e 59,925 - 20 (21,108) 38,837
Unearned revenue and other liabilities . 1,702,137 1,351 34 - 1,703,522
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables.................. 108,190 3,840,849 127,773 - 4,076,812
Net pension liability - 2,775,426 48,163 - 2,823,589
Net OPEB liability - 2,069,811 48,300 - 2,118,111
Total liabilities.........ccooeeiiiiiie 2,755,430 9,386,488 243,835 (21,108) 12,364,645
Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable reVeNUE. ............oooveeiiieiiieee e 562,151 (562,151) - - -
Unamortized gain on refunding of debt.................cccccvvniiinns - 17,742 317 - 18,059
Deferred inflows related to pensions - 532,172 11,125 - 543,297
Deferred inflows related to OPEB - 177,316 4,765 - 182,081
Total deferred inflows of resources..................uvevveeennn. 562,151 165,079 16,207 - 743,437
Fund balances/ net position
Total fund balances/ net position..............cccccceevvennnnee. $ 5039876 $ (1,726,782) $ (179,472) $ - $ 3,133,622
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(1) When capital assets (land, infrastructure, buildings, equipment, and intangible
assets) that are to be used in governmental activities are purchased or constructed,
the costs of those assets are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
However, the statement of net position includes those capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, among the assets of the City as a whole.

COSt Of CAPILAl ASSELS ...eieiivieieiciiee et e e e s e e e s enaeeas $ 8,864,868
Accumulated depreCiation ...........ooueie i (2,176,347)
$ 6,688,521

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City’s governmental activities are not due and
payable in the current period, and accordingly, are not reported as fund liabilities.
All liabilities, both current and long-term, are reported in the statement of net

position.
Accrued vacation and SiCK IEaVE PAY ........ccccuuveeiiiiiii e $ (193,590)
Accrued WOrkers’ COMPENSALION.........uuuiiieeii e e e e e st e e e e e e s s e e e e e e ssnrnreeeeeas (290,548)
Estimated claims payable............ouviiie i (194,137)
Unearned revenue and other liabilitieS............cocceiiiiiii i (1,351)
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables .........ccccccovvciiiiiiiie i (3,840,849)
$(4,520,475)
Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is
recognized as an expenditure when due. $ (20,776)
Deferred outflows (inflows) of resources related to debt refundings in governmental
activities are not financial resources, and therefore, are not reported in the
governmental funds.
Unamortized loss on refunding of debt............ooooiii e $ 10,327
Unamortized gain on refunding of debt ... (17,742)
$ (7415
Net pension liability is not due and payable in the current period, and accordingly
is not reported as a fund liability. Deferred outflows (inflows) of resources related
to pensions are not financial resources, and therefore, are not reported in the
governmental funds.
Net Pension IAaDIlItY..........c.eeii e $(2,775,426)
Deferred outflows of resources related to PeNSIONS..........cooviiiiiiiiie e 857,044
Deferred inflows of resources related to PENSIONS .........ccveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeece e (532,172)
$(2,450,554)
Net OPEB liability is not due and payable in the current period, and accordingly is
not reported as a fund liability. Deferred outflows (inflows) of resources related to
OPEB are not financial resources, and therefore, are not reported in the
governmental funds.
N e O o] ot T SR $ 412
NEt OPEB HADIILY ......vcveee ettt n e (2,069,811)
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB .........ccooooovviiveiiiieieeeeeeeeee e 268,481
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB..........cccccceeiiiiciiiiiieee e e (177,316)
$(1,978,234)
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Because the focus of governmental funds is on the availability of resources, some
assets will not be available to pay for current period expenditures and thus are not
included in fund balance.

Revenue not collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period .......... $ 562,151

(2) Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities, such as capital lease financing, equipment maintenance services,
printing and mailing services, and telecommunications and information systems,
to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are
included in governmental activities in the statement of net position.

Net position before adjuSIMENTS ..........oeiiiiiiii e $ (58,317)
Adjustments for internal balances with the San Francisco Finance Corporation:

Capital lease receivables from other governmental and enterprise funds............... (123,792)

Unearned revenue and other IabilitieS..........cccoovvveiiie i 2,637

$ (179,472)
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(b) Explanation of certain differences between the governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of
activities

The net change in fund balances for governmental funds, $(100,701), differs from the change in net
position for governmental activities, $232,131, reported in the statement of activities. The differences
arise primarily from the long-term economic focus in the statement of activities versus the current
financial resources focus in the governmental funds. The effect of the differences is illustrated below.

Total Long-term Capital- Internal Long-term Statement of
Governmental Revenues/ related Service Debt Activities
Funds Expenses (3) Items (4) Funds (5)  Transactions (6) Totals
Revenues
PrOPEIY tAXES....uvviiiieeeeeiiiiiiee e e e et e e $ 2654937 $ 78,397 $ - $ - % - $ 2,733,334
BUSINESS taXES....iiieiiieeeeeeeeeececeeeee 833,931 - - - - 833,931
Sales and USE taX......ceceuuevirneiiiieeiiieeieeeieee e 279,453 - - - - 279,453
Hotel roOm taX........vvvviiiiieiiiiiiicicee e 280,970 - - - - 280,970
ULty USEIS TaX..uvvviviiiiiiiiiiiisiees s eeeeaees 94,231 - - - - 94,231
Parking taX.......ccovviieieieieeeee 69,461 - - - - 69,461
Real property transfer taX...........cccoevvvvvvvvrerireririnenennn. 334,535 - - - - 334,535
Other local taxes..........cccoeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie 70,863 - - - - 70,863
Licenses, permits and franchises..............ccccceeeeeinn 38,472 1,490 - - - 39,962
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties..................evvvvvivinnnnne 43,830 506 - - - 44,336
Interest and investment iNCOME..............c.ceeevvneeinnnnnn. 141,638 - - 543 - 142,181
Rents and CONCESSIONS...........uvvviviviiiiiiiiiieeeeeenn 118,865 530 - - - 119,395
Intergovernmental:
Federal.. 590,697 26,103 - 329 - 617,129
State.. 990,264 10,380 - - - 1,000,644
Other.. 26,483 17) - - - 26,466
Charges for senices... 398,405 1,463 - - - 399,868
OLNET. ..ttt 214,359 56,697 - 162 - 271,218
Total reVENUES........ccvvviiieiiieiiiiic e 7,181,394 175,549 - 1,034 - 7,357,977
Expenditures/ Expenses
Current:
Public protection..............ccovvveviiiriiiiiiiiiiiine 1,551,125 90,456 21,227 (1,546) - 1,661,262
Public works, transportation and commerce............. 488,697 29,652 (156,216) - - 362,133
Human welfare and neighborhood development.. 2,070,388 42,663 24,917 - - 2,137,968
Community health... 1,026,915 84,937 36,356 - - 1,148,208
Culture and recreation.............. 460,157 16,805 49,901 (7,848) - 519,015
General administration and finance................ccc....... 392,629 19,273 4,453 15 - 416,370
General City responsibilities. ............cccceeiveiiiinennnnnn. 129,941 322 (8,195) (2,375) - 119,693
Debt senice:
Principal retirement.............ccoooiiiii 296,875 - - - (296,875) -
Interest and other fiscal charges... 150,646 - - 3,578 (17,659) 136,565
Bond issuance costs................cocouall 4,455 - - - - 4,455
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent.................. 8,905 - - - (4,325) 4,580
Capital OULIAY.......coeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 454,137 - (454,137) - - -
Total eXpenditures..............eeeeieiiverieeeeriniiinees 7,034,870 284,108 (481,694) (8,176) (318,859) 6,510,249
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures..............oeeiiiiiini 146,524 (108,559) 481,694 9,210 318,859 847,728
Other financing sources (uses) /
changes in net position
Net transfers in (OUL)...........ocoeviviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee (678,934) - - (516) - (679,450)
Issuance of bonds:
Face value of bonds issued.................cccceeiiiininns 615,625 - - - (615,625)
Premium on issuance of bonds. 73,759 - - - (73,759)
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent... (257,675) - - - 257,675 -
Total other financing sources (USeS).................. (247,225) - - (516) (431,709) (679,450)
Capital contributions................veviiiiiiiiiiiicieeeeeeeen - - 63,853 - - 63,853
Net change for the year............ccccoevivineenn. $ (100,701) $ (108,559) $ 5455547 $ 8,694 $ (112,850) $ 232,131
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Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the period the amount becomes
available. This is the current period amount by which the deferred inflows of
resources increased in the governmental funds.

Other revenues that were unavailable are reported as deferred inflows of
resources in the governmental funds. This is the current period amount by which
deferred inflows of resources increased in the governmental funds.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Certain long-term liabilities reported in the prior year
statement of net position were paid during the current period resulting in
expenditures in the governmental funds. This is the amount by which the increase
in long-term liabilities exceeded expenditures in funds that do not require the use
of current financial resources.

Changes to net pension liability and pension related deferred outflows and inflows
of resources do not provide financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
a reduction in expenditures in governmental funds.

Changes to net OPEB asset/liability and OPEB related deferred outflows and
inflows of resources do not provide financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as a reduction in expenditures in governmental funds.

Governmental funds report revenues and expenditures primarily pertaining to long-
term loan activities, which are not reported in the statement of activities. These
activities are reported at the government-wide level in the statement of net position.
This is the net revenues reported in the governmental funds.

When capital assets that are to be used in governmental activities are purchased
or constructed, the resources expended for those assets are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the statement of activities, the
cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. As a result, fund balance decreases by the amount of
financial resources expended, whereas net position decreases by the amount of
depreciation expense charged for the year and the loss on disposal of capital
assets. In addition, contributions of capital assets are not financial resources in the
governmental funds but are reported as revenues in the statement of activities.

Capital @XPENAITUIES ... ... e e e e e e e e e snb e e eeeas
DEPreCiation EXPENSE .....ccii ittt e e e e e e s e e e e e e e s e anbabeeeeeaeeeaan
Loss on disposal of capital @SSEtS.........cccuiiiiiiiee i
(OFT o]1 7=1 I oTo] 011 1 010 (o] s 1SR
Write off of CONStrUCtiON IN PrOgreSS.......uvviiiieii i e

(1 1=1 1= o7 S

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities, such as capital lease financing, equipment maintenance services,
printing and mailing services, and telecommunications and information systems to
individual funds. The adjustments for internal service funds “close” those funds by
charging additional amounts to participating governmental activities to completely
cover the internal service funds’ costs for the year.

54

$ 78,397
97,152
$ 175,549
$ (536,331)
203,093
66,205
(17.075)
$ (284,108)
$ 698,108
(215,379)
(24)
63,853
(1,011)

$ 545547
$ 8694



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2020
(Dollars in Thousands)

(6) Bond premiums are a source of funds in the governmental funds when the bonds
are issued, but are capitalized in the statement of net position. This is the amount

of premiums capitalized during the current period. $ (73,759)
Repayment of bond principal and the payment to escrow for refunding of debt are
reported as expenditures in governmental funds and, thus, have the effect of
reducing fund balance because current financial resources have been used. For
the City as a whole, however, the principal payments and payment to escrow for
refunded debt reduce the liabilities in the statement of net position and do not result
in expenses in the statement of activities. The City's bonded debt was reduced
because principal payments were made to bond holders and payments were made
to escrow for refunded debt.
Principal payments MAade ...........uuiiiiiiiieie e $ 296,875
Payments to escrow for refunded debt.............ooo 262,000
558,875
Bond proceeds are reported as other financing sources in governmental funds and
thus contribute to the change in fund balance. In the government-wide statements,
however, issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position
and does not affect the statement of activities. Proceeds were received from:
General obligation DONAS ..........uiiiiii e $ (145,500)
Refunding general obligation bONdS ..o (195,250)
Certificates Of partiCipation..........cccccoiiiciiiiiee e e (247,810)
Refunding certificates of partiCipation...........cccccvvee e (27,065)
(615,625)
$_ (56,750
Interest expense in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in
governmental funds because (1) additional accrued and accreted interest was
calculated for bonds, notes payable and capital leases, and (2) amortization of
bond premiums and refunding losses and gains are not expended within the fund
statements.
INCrease iN aCCrued INTEIESE ........cuviiiei e e e eee et s e e sneeenneee s $ (2,624)
Gain ON FEfUNTINGS .....eeeeee et (17,831)
Amortization of bONd PremMiUMS. ... 39,314
Amortization of bond refunding losses and gains...........ccccooveeieiiiiie e (1,200)
$ 17,659
(4) EFFeECTS OF NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
The City is currently analyzing its accounting practices to determine the potential impact of the following

pronouncements, with implementation dates as amended by Statement No. 95, Postponement of the

Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance:

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. GASB Statement No. 84

establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. Sep

arate criteria

are included to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are
fiduciary activities. The new standard is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019.

Application of this statement is effective for the City’s year ending June 30, 2021.
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In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. GASB Statement No. 87 establishes a
single model for lease accounting and requires reporting of certain lease assets, liabilities, and deferred
inflows that currently are not reported. The new standard is effective for periods beginning after June
15, 2021. Application of this statement is effective for the City’s year ending June 30, 2022.

In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End
of a Construction Period. GASB Statement No. 89 requires that interest costs incurred before the end
of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred and no
longer included in the historical cost of capital assets. The new standard is effective for periods
beginning after December 15, 2020. Application of this statement is effective for the City’s year ending
June 30, 2022.

In August 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests—an amendment of
GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61. GASB Statement No. 90 establishes standards for reporting a
government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization. The new standard is effective
for periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Application of this statement is effective for the City’s
year ending June 30, 2021.

In May 2019, the GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. GASB Statement No. 91
clarifies the definition of conduit debt and establishes new recognition, measurement, and disclosure
requirements. The new standard is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2021. Application
of this statement is effective for the City’s year ending June 30, 2023.

In January 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020. GASB Statement No. 92
addresses a variety of topics related to postemployment benefits and other issues. The new standard
is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2021. Application of this statement is effective for the
City’s year ending June 30, 2022.

In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates. GASB
Statement No. 93 addresses the accounting and financial reporting effects of replacement of interbank
offering rates with other reference rates in agreements which reference an interbank offering rate. The
new standard is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2021. Application of this statement is
effective for the City’s year ending June 30, 2022.

In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and
Availability Payment Arrangements. GASB Statement No. 94 establishes standards for public-private
and public-public partnerships (PPPs) and availability payment arrangements. A PPP is an
arrangement in which a government contracts with an operator to provide public services by conveying
control of the right to operate or use a nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital asset
(the underlying PPP asset), for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. An
availability payment arrangement is an arrangement in which a government compensates an operator
for services that may include designing, constructing, financing, maintaining, or operating an underlying
nonfinancial asset for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. The new standard
requires reporting of related assets and deferred inflows that currently are not reported and is effective
for periods beginning after June 15, 2022. Application of this statement is effective for the City’s year
ending June 30, 2023.

In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements. GASB Statement No. 96 defines such arrangements as contracts that convey control
of the right to use another party’s information technology software, alone or in combination with tangible
capital assets, as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like
transaction. The standard clarifies measurement and recognition of capitalizable costs, intangible
assets, and subscription liabilities for such arrangements and also requires additional disclosures
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related to such arrangements. The new standard is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2022.

Application of this statement is effective for the City’s year ending June 30, 2023.

In June 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an
amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32.
GASB Statement No. 97 clarifies the criteria used in determining whether a fiduciary component unit
exists and clarifies financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code section 457 deferred compensation
plans. The new standard is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2021. Application of this
statement is effective for the City’s year ending June 30, 2022.

(5) DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

(a) Cash, Deposits and Investments Presentation

Total City cash, deposits and investments, at fair value, are as follows:

Component
Primary Government Units
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Fduciary Funds Total
Deposits and investments with
City Treasury......ooceveeneennerneennnn. $ 6,762,347 $ 2,731,416 $ 1,046,210 10,539,973 %
Deposits and investments outside
City Treasury......coceoveneenecrneennnnn. 310,700 23,060 27,232,669 27,566,429
Restricted assets:
Deposits and investments with
City Treasury........coveeunennennns 1,671,025 1,671,025
Deposits and investments outside
City Treasury........ccoveeuveenennnes 6,324 980,642 326,640 1,313,606
Total deposits & investments $ 7,079,371 $ 5,406,143 $ 28,605,519 41,091,033 $
Cash and deposits...................... 102,978 $
Investments........ccccoeviiiiiiiinnnnns 40,988,055
Total deposits and investments..... 41,091,033 %

(b) Investment Policies

Treasurer’s Pool

The City’s investment policy addresses the Treasurer's safekeeping and custody practices with
financial institutions in which the City deposits funds, types of permitted investment instruments, and
the percentage of the portfolio which may be invested in certain instruments with longer terms to
maturity. The objectives of the policy, in order of priority, are safety, liquidity, and earning a market rate
of return on public funds. The City has established a Treasury Oversight Committee (Oversight
Committee) as defined in the City Administrative Code section 10.80-3, comprised of various City
officials, representatives of agencies with large cash balances, and members of the public, to monitor
and review the management of public funds maintained in the investment pool in accordance with
Sections 27130 to 27137 of the California Government Code. The Treasurer prepares and submits an
investment report to the Mayor, the Board of Supervisors, members of the Oversight Committee and
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the investment pool participants every month. The report covers the type of investments in the pool,
maturity dates, par value, actual cost, and fair value.

The investment policy places maturity limits based on the type of security. Investments held by the
Treasurer during the year did not include repurchase agreements or reverse repurchase agreements.
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the City’s investment policy dated
February 2018.

The table also identifies certain provisions of the City’s investment policy that address interest rate risk
and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum
Maximum Investment
Maximum Percentage in One

Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portolio Issuer
U.S. Treasuries 5 years 100% 100%
Federal Agencies 5 years 100% 100%
State and Local Government Agency Obligations 5 years 20% * 5% *
Public Time Deposits 13 months * None None
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit/Yankee Certificates
of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Banker’s Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% * 10%
Medium Term Notes 24 months * 25% * 10% *
Repurchase Agreements (Government Securities) 1 year None None
Repurchase Agreements (Securities permitted by CA
Government Code, Sections 53601 and 53635) 1 year 10% None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements / Securities Lending 45 days * None $75 million *
Money Market (Institutional Government Funds) N/A 20% N/A
Supranationals 5 years 30% None
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund
(LAIF) N/A Statutory None

* Represents restriction on which the City’s investment policy is more restrictive than the California
Government Code.

The Treasurer also holds for safekeeping bequests, trust funds, and lease deposits for other City
departments. The bequests and trust funds consist of stocks and debentures. Those instruments are
valued at par, cost, or fair value at the time of donation.

Other Funds

Other funds consist primarily of deposits and investments with trustees related to the issuance of bonds
and to certain loan programs operated by the City. These funds are invested either in accordance with
bond covenants and are pledged for payment of principal, interest, and specified capital improvements
or in accordance with grant agreements and may be restricted for the issuance of loans.

Employees’ Retirement System

The Retirement System’s investments are invested pursuant to investment policy guidelines as
established by the Retirement Board. The objective of the policy is to maximize the expected return of
the fund at an acceptable level of risk. The Retirement Board has established percentage guidelines
for types of investments to ensure the portfolio is diversified.

Investment managers are required to diversify by issue, maturity, sector, coupon, and geography.

Investment managers retained by the Retirement System follow specific investment guidelines and are
evaluated against specific market benchmarks that represent their investment style. Any exemption

58



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2020
(Dollars in Thousands)

from general guidelines requires approval from the Retirement Board. The Retirement System invests
in securities with contractual cash flows, such as asset backed securities, commercial mortgage backed
securities and collateralized mortgage obligations. The value, liquidity and related income of these
securities are sensitive to changes in economic conditions, including real estate values, delinquencies
or defaults, or both, and may be affected by shifts in the market’s perception of the issuers and changes
in interest rates.

The investment policy permits investments in domestic and international debt and equity securities,
securities lending, foreign currency contracts, derivative instruments, private equity, real assets, private
credit, and absolute return investments, which include investments in a variety of commingled
partnership vehicles. The Retirement Board’s asset allocation policies for the year ended June 30,
2020, are as follows:

Target Allocation since

Asset Class September 2017
Global Equity 31.0%
Treasuries 6.0%
Liquid Credit 3.0%
Private Credit 10.0%
Private Equity 18.0%
Real Assets 17.0%
Hedge Funds/Absolute Return 15.0%
100.0%

The Retirement System is not directly involved in repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements.
However, external investment managers retained by the Retirement System may employ repurchase
arrangements if the securities purchased or sold comply with the manager’s investment guidelines. The
Retirement System monitors the investment activity of its investment managers to ensure compliance
with guidelines. In addition, the Retirement System’s securities lending cash collateral separately
managed account is authorized to use repurchase arrangements. The Retirement System maintains
its operating fund cash in the Treasurer’s Pool.
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Retiree Health Care Trust Fund (RHCTF)

The RHCTF maintains cash in the Treasurer's Pool. The RHCTF’s investments outside of the City
Treasury are invested pursuant to investment policy guidelines as established by the RHCTF Board.
The objective of the policy is to manage fund assets so as to achieve the highest, reasonably prudent
real return possible. The RHCTF allocates its investments among numerous investment managers and
in accordance with the investment policy approved by the RHCTF Board. The RHCTF Board has
established percentage guidelines for types of investments to ensure the portfolio is diversified, as

follows:

Target Allocation
from November 2017

Asset Class to September 2019
Equities
U.S. Equity 41.0%
Developed Market Equity (Non-U.S.) 20.0%
Emerging Market Equity 16.0%
Credit
High Yield Bonds 3.0%
Bank Loans 3.0%
Emerging Market Bonds 3.0%

Rate Securities
Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities

(TIPS) 5.0%
Investment Grade Bonds 9.0%
100.0%

Target Allocation

Asset Class since October 2019
Equities

U.S. Equity 31.0%

Developed Market Equity (Non-U.S.) 15.0%

Emerging Market Equity 13.0%
Credit

Bank Loans/ High Yield 6.0%

Emerging Market Bonds 3.0%
Rate Securities

Investment Grade Bonds 9.0%

Long-term Government Bonds 4.0%

Short-term Treasury Inflation-Protected

Securities (TIPS) 4.0%
Private Markets

Private Equity 5.0%

Core Private Real Estate 5.0%
Risk Mitigating Strategies

Global Macro 5.0%

100.0%
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(c) Fair Value Hierarchy

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure fair
value of the assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in an active market for identical assets; Level 2
inputs are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs
(the City does not value any of its investments using Level 3 inputs). The inputs or methodology used
for valuing securities are not an indication of risk associated with investing in those securities.

The following is a summary of inputs used in valuing the City’s investments as of June 30, 2020:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Pricesin  Significant

Active Markets Other
for Identical Observable  Unobservable
Fair Value Assets Inputs Inputs
6/30/2020 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Primary Government:
Investments in City Treasury:
U.S. Treasuries $ 3,613,851 $ 3,613,851 $ - 0% -
U.S. Agencies - Discount 346,714 - 346,714 -
U.S. Agencies - Coupon (no call option) 2,987,109 - 2,987,109 -
U.S. Agencies (callable option) 339,031 - 339,031 -
State and Local Agencies 57,523 - 57,523 -
Negotiable Certificates of Deposits 1,311,853 - 1,311,853 -
Corporate Notes 5,071 - 5,071 -
Supranationals 637,378 - 637,378 -
Commercial Paper 589,955 - 589,955 -
Public Time Deposits 45,000 * - - -
Money Market Mutual Funds 2,312,516 * - - -
Subtotal Investments in City Treasury 12,246,001 $ 3613851 $ 6,274634 $ -
Investments Outside City Treasury:
(Governmental and Business - Type)
U.S. Treasury Bills 4571 $ 4571 $ - $ -
U.S. Treasury Notes 413,426 413,426 -
U.S. Agencies 383,694 - 383,694 -
State and Local Agencies 3,899 - 3,899 -
Corporate Notes 3,139 - 3,139 -
Supranationals 6,291 - 6,291 -
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 3,214 - 3,214 -
Commercial Paper 1,478 * - - -
Money Market Mutual Funds 733,810 * - - -
Certificates of Deposit 273 * - - -
Subtotal Investments Outside City Treasury 1,553,795 $ 417997 % 400,237 $ -

* Not subject to fair value hierarchy
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Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Pricesin  Significant

Active Markets Other
for Identical Observable  Unobservable
Fair Value Assets Inputs Inputs
6/30/2020 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Employees' Retirement System Investments
Short-Term Investments $ 524,408 $ - $ - 3% 524,408
Debt Securities:
U.S. Government and Agency Securities 1,094,201 1,094,199 2 -
Other Debt Securities 820,556 179,683 546,063 94,810
Equity Securities:
Domestic Equity 2,884,344 2,876,298 8,046 -
International Equity 1,867,980 1,867,041 930 9
Foreign Currency Contracts, net (116) - - (116)
Invested Securities Lending Collateral 547,047 - 420,514 126,533
Subtotal 7,738,420 $ 6,017,221  $ 975555 % 745,644

Investments measured at the net asset value (NAV)

Short-Term Investments 1,645
Fixed Income invested in:

Other Debt Securities 137,868
Equity Funds invested in:

Domestic 3,319,968

International 534,046
Real Assets 3,840,427
Private Credit 1,291,763
Private Equity 6,105,532
Absolute Return 3,702,667

Total investments measured at the NAV 18,933,916

Subtotal Investments in Employees' Retirement System 26,672,336

Retiree Health Care Trust Investments measured at the NAV

Short-Term Investments 6,564
Fixed Income:
Debt Index Funds 180,670
Equities:
Domestic 166,719
International 161,970
Subtotal Investments in Retiree Health Care Trust 515,923
Total Investments $ 40,988,055

Investments Held in City Treasury

U.S. Treasury Notes are valued using quoted prices in active markets and classified in Level 1 of the
fair value hierarchy.

U.S. Agencies, State and Local Agencies, Negotiable Certificates of Deposit, Corporate Notes,
Commercial Paper and Supranationals are valued using a variety of techniques such as matrix pricing,
market corroborated pricing inputs such as yield curve, indices, and other market related data and
classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Money Market Funds have maturities of one year or less from fiscal year end and are not subject to
GASB Statement No. 72. Public Time Deposits are measured at cost.
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Investments Held Outside City Treasury

U.S. Treasury Bills and Notes are valued using quoted prices in active markets and classified in Level
1 of the fair value hierarchy. U.S. Agencies, State and Local Agencies, Corporate Notes,
Supranationals, and Negotiable Certificates of Deposit are valued using a variety of techniques such
as matrix pricing, market corroborated pricing inputs such as yield curve, indices, and other market
related data and classified in Level 2. Commercial Paper, Money Market Funds, and Certificates of
Deposit are not subject to the fair value hierarchy.

Employees’ Retirement System Investments
Investments at Fair Value

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In some cases, a
valuation technique may have multiple inputs used to measure fair value, and each input might fall into
a different level of the fair value hierarchy. The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair value
measurement falls in its entirety is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
measurement. The prices used in determining the fair value hierarchy are obtained from various pricing
sources by the Retirement System’s custodian bank.

Debt and equity securities classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using prices quoted
in active markets. Debt and equity securities classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued
using prices determined by the use of matrix pricing techniques maintained by the various pricing
vendors for these securities. Debt securities including short-term instruments are priced based on
evaluated prices. Such evaluated prices may be determined by factors which include, but are not limited
to, market quotations, yields, maturities, call features, ratings, institutional size trading in similar groups
of securities and developments related to specific securities. For equity securities not traded on an
active exchange, or if the closing price is not available, corroborated indicative quotes obtained from
pricing vendors are generally used. Debt and equity securities classified in Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy are securities whose stated market prices are unobservable by the market place. Many of
these securities are priced using uncorroborated indicative quotes, adjusted prices based on inputs
from different sources, or evaluated prices using unobservable inputs, such as extrapolated data,
proprietary models, and indicative quotes from pricing vendors.

Investments at Net Asset Value (NAV)

The equity and debt funds are commingled funds that are priced at net asset value by industry vendors
and fund families. NAV is the fair value of all securities owned by a fund, minus its total liabilities, divided
by the number of shares issued and outstanding. The NAV of an open-end fund is its price.

The fair value of the Retirement System’s investments in private equity, real assets, private credit,
absolute return, and some public equity investments are based on net asset values provided by the
investment managers and general partners (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “General
Partners”). Such value generally represents the Retirement System’s proportionate share of the net
assets of the limited partnerships. The partnership financial statements are audited annually as of
December 31 and the net asset values are adjusted by additional contributions to and distributions from
the partnership, the Retirement System’s share of net earnings and losses, and unrealized gains and
losses resulting from changes in fair value, as determined by the General Partners.

The General Partners may use one or more valuation methodologies outlined in FASB ASC 820, Fair

Value Measurement. For some investments, little market activity may exist. The General Partners’
determination of fair value is then based on the best information available in the circumstances and
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may involve subjective assumptions and estimates, including the General Partners’ assessment of the
information that market participants would use in valuing the investments. The General Partners may
take into consideration a combination of internal and external factors, including but not limited to,
appropriate risk adjustments for nonperformance and liquidity. Such fair value estimates involve
subjective judgments of unrealized gains and losses.

The values provided by the General Partners may differ significantly from the values that would have
been used had a ready market existed for these investments.

Private credit investment strategies include capital preservation, return maximization and opportunistic.
Investments in the asset class are achieved through commingled funds and separate account
partnerships. Private credit investments are mostly illiquid and distributions are received over the life of
the investments. These investments are not typically redeemed, nor do they have set redemption
schedules. There are fourteen public equity investments held in commingled funds valued at net asset
value. Two investments, valued at $0.8 million, are currently being liquidated with proceeds expected
over the next 1-3 years. The remaining investments may be subject to varying lock-up provisions and
redemption schedules. The real asset holdings are illiquid. Distributions are received over the life of the
investments, which could equal or exceed ten years. They are not redeemed, nor do they have set
redemption schedules. Private equity investment strategies include buyout, venture capital, growth
capital, and special situations. Investments in the asset class are achieved primarily through
commingled fund and separate account partnerships but may also include direct and co-investment
opportunities. Private equity investments are illiquid and distributions are received over the life of the
investments, which could equal or exceed ten years. These investments are not typically redeemed,
nor do they have set redemption schedules.

Absolute return investment strategies include equity, credit, macro, emerging markets, quantitative,
multi-strategy, special situations/other, co-investments, and commodities. Investments are achieved
through limited partnerships. The table below provides a summary of the terms and conditions upon
which the Retirement System may redeem its absolute return investments. Investments have the
potential to become illiquid under stressed market conditions and, in certain circumstances, investors
may be subject to redemption restrictions that differ from the standard terms and conditions
summarized here, which can impede the return of capital according to those terms and conditions.

Absolute Return Investments Measured at NAV as of June 30, 2020

e ey Fedemoten otee
44% Monthly 5-95 Days
46% Quarterly 45-180 Days
10% Semi-annually 60-180 Days
100%
%of NAV in Lock Up As of FHscal Year End
13% 2020-2021
9% 2021-2022
4% 2022-2023
1% 2023-2024
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Retiree Health Care Trust Fund
Investments at Net Asset Value (NAV)

At June 30, 2020, the Retiree Health Care Trust Fund had cash and investments in the City Treasury
pool, commingled funds, mutual funds, feeder funds, and money market funds. The funds are priced at
net asset value (NAV) by industry vendors and fund families. NAV is the fair value of all securities
owned by a fund, minus its total liabilities, divided by the number of shares issued and outstanding. As
of June 30, 2020, one debt security investment valued at $38.9 million has quarter end redemptions
with a 90 day advance written notice requirement. In addition, one international equity investment
valued at $76.1 million has weekly redemptions with a three-day advance naotification requirement. Both
investments have 5% holdbacks for a full liquidation. There are no redemption restrictions for the
remaining commingled funds.

(d) Investment Risks
Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, the City will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California Government Code, the City’s
investment policy and the Retirement System’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following
provision. The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made
by state or local governmental units not covered by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance
by pledging government securities as collateral. The market value of pledged securities must equal at
least 110.0% of the type of collateral authorized in California Government Code, Section 53651 (a)
through (i) of the City’s deposits. The collateral must be held at the pledging bank’s trust department or
another bank, acting as the pledging bank’s agent, in the City’s name. As of June 30, 2020, $698 of
the business-type activities bank balances were exposed to custodial credit risk by not being insured
or collateralized.
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair
value to changes in interest rates. Information about the sensitivity to the fair values of the City’s
investments to interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following tables, which shows the distribution
of the City’s investments by maturity. The Retirement System’s and Retiree Health Care Trust Fund’s
interest rate risk information is discussed in sections (f) and (g), respectively, of this note.

Investment Maturities

Less than 1to5
S & P Rating Fair Value 1year years
Primary Government:
Investments in City Treasury:
U.S. Treasury Notes AA+ $ 3,613,851 $ 3,125,053 $ 488,798
U.S. Agencies NR - AA+ 3,672,854 1,637,497 2,035,357
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit Al-Al+ 1,311,853 1,311,853 -
Money Market Mutual Funds AAAM 2,312,516 2,312,516 -
Public time deposits NR 45,000 45,000 -
State and Local Agencies AA- - AA+ 57,523 57,523 -
Supranationals AAA 637,378 473,053 164,325
Corporate Notes Al+ 5,071 5,071 -
Commercial Paper Al-Al+ 589,955 589,955 -
Less: Employees' Retirement System
Investments with City Treasury n/a (32,391) (32,391) -
Less: Retiree Health Care Trust
Investments with City Treasury n/a (2,882) (2,882) -
Subtotal pooled investments 12,210,728  $ 9522248 $ 2,688,480
Investments Outside City Treasury:
(Governmental and Business - Type)
U.S. Treasury Bills NR $ 4571 % 4571 % -
U.S. Treasury Notes AA+, A1+ 413,426 132,752 280,674
U.S. Agencies AA+, A1+ 383,694 71,665 312,029
State and Local Agencies AA+, AA, AA-, AAA, NR 3,899 1,374 2,525
Supranationals AAA 6,291 708 5,583
Corporate notes AA+, AA-, A+ 3,139 2,581 558
Money Market Mutual Funds A-1+, AAAM 624,046 624,046 -
U.S. Treasury Money Market Funds AAAM 109,764 109,764 -
Commercial Paper A-1+, A-1, AAAm 1,478 1,478 -
Certificates of Deposit A1, A+, AA-, NR 3,487 1,437 2,050
Subtotal investments outside City Treasury 1,553,795 $ 950,376 $ 603,419
Retiree Health Care Trust Investments 518,805
Employees' Retirement System investments 26,704,727
Total Primary Government $ 40,988,055
Total Investments $ 40,988,055

As of June 30, 2020, the investments in the City Treasury had a weighted average maturity of 249 days.

66



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2020
(Dollars in Thousands)

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to pay the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. The Standard & Poor’s rating for each of the investment types are shown in the table
above.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to
transaction, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that
are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the City’s investment
policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk
for investments; however, it is the practice of the City Treasurer that all investments are insured,
registered or held by the Treasurer's custodial agent in the City’s name. The governmental and
business-type activities also have investments with trustees related to the issuance of bonds that are
uninsured, unregistered and held by the counterparty’s trust departments but not in the City’s name.
These amounts are included in the investments outside City Treasury shown in the table above.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The City’s investment policy contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one
issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code and/or its investment policy. U.S.
Treasury and agency securities explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government are not subject to single
issuer limitation.

As of June 30, 2020, the City Treasurer has investments in U.S. Agencies that represent 5.0% or more
of the total Pool in the following:

In addition, the following major fund holds investments with trustees that represent 5.0% or more of the
funds’ investments outside City Treasury as of June 30, 2020:

Airport:
Federal National Mortgage ASSOCIAtioN ..........cccccoevciviieeeeeennnnns 19.6%
Federal Home Loan Bank.............cccceiiiiiiiiiiieiiiieeeee e 12.0%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation............ccccceeeeeevecevnnen. 9.9%
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(e) Treasurer’s Pool

The following represents a condensed statement of net position and changes in net position for the

Treasurer’s Pool as of and for the year e

nded June 30, 2020:

Statement of Net Position

Net position held in trust for all pool participants

Equity of internal pool participants.......................
Equity of external pool participants

Total equity..........

$12,210,998

$11,920,028
290,970
$12,210,998

Statement of Changes in Net Position

Net position at July 1

Net change in investments by pool participants.....
Net position at June 30, 2020..........................

$11,530,990
680,008
$12,210,998

v 20190,

The following provides a summary of key investment information for the Treasurer's Pool as of

June 30, 2020:

Type of Investment Rates Maturities Par Value Carrying Value
Pooled Investments:
U.S. TreasulieS.....ococeeeeeeeeveerennennns 0.09% -2.57% 07/02/20 - 11/15/23 $ 3,585,000 $ 3,613,851
U.S. AQENCIES ..ooeeeeeereeieeereeeneenes 0.10% - 3.09% 07/06/20 - 03/03/25 3,619,485 3,672,854
State and local agencies................ 1.40% - 2.80% 04/01/21 - 05/15/21 56,737 57,523
Public time depositS.......ccccoeevenne 0.06% - 0.35% 09/21/20 - 12/23/20 45,000 45,000
Negotiable certificates of deposit.. 0.43% -1.87% 07/01/20 - 03/15/21 1,308,790 1,311,853
Commercial paper....cccoceeeeeerereene 151%-1.96% 07/01/20 - 08/25/20 590,000 589,955
Corporate NOtES ....cccoveerereeeeererereeeenes 3.08% - 3.08% 01/08/21-01/08/21 5,000 5,071
Money market mutual funds........... 0.06% - 0.12% 07/01/20 - 07/01/20 2,312,516 2,312,516
SupranationalS.......c.ccceeeevreieenenenn 0.25% -2.97% 07/01/20 - 01/28/25 632,135 637,378
$12,154,663 12,246,001
Carrying amount of depoSitS With TIEASUIET........cccuvreuiirrieeeerre et (35,003)
Total cash and iINVESTMENTS With TrEASUIEI ........ccueiuicee ettt enes $ 12,210,998
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(f) Retirement System’s Investments

The Retirement System’s investments as of June 30, 2020, are summarized as follows:
Fixed Income Investments:

Short-term investments $ 526,053
Investments in City Treasury 32,391

Debt securities:

U.S. Government and agencies 1,094,201
Other debt securities 958,424
Subtotal debt securities 2,052,625
Total fixed income investments 2,611,069

Equity securities:

Domestic 6,204,312
International 2,402,026
Total equity securities 8,606,338
Real assets 3,840,427
Private credit 1,291,763
Private equity 6,105,532
Absolute return 3,702,667
Foreign currency contracts, net (116)
Invested securities lending collateral 547,047
Total Retirement System Investments $ 26,704,727
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Interest Rate Risk
The Retirement System does not have a specific policy to manage interest rate risk. Below is a table

depicting the segmented time distribution for fixed income investments based upon the expected
maturity (in years) as of June 30, 2020:

Maturities
Lessthan 1

Investment Type Fair Value year 1-5 years 6-10 years 10+ years
Asset-Backed Securities $ 10,108 $ - 8 60 $ 505 $ 9,543
Bank Loans 94,415 1,517 56,186 36,712 -
City Investment Pool 32,391 32,391 - - -
Collateralized Bonds 802 - - 532 270
Commercial Mortgage-Backed 75,597 951 247 2,862 71,537
Commingled and Other

Fixed Income Funds 315,749 444 - 83,140 232,165
Corporate Bonds 159,427 2,535 68,865 77,552 10,475
Corporate Conwertible Bonds 167,019 8,612 100,002 51,691 6,714
Gowvernment Bonds 1,190,312 20,309 741,719 394,942 33,342
Gowvernment Mortgage-

Backed Securities 2 - - 1 1
Non-Government Backed

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 6,871 - 601 - 6,270
Options @) 1) - - -
Short-Term Investment Funds 553,249 553,249 - - -
Swaps 5,128 1,295 2,484 576 773
Total $ 2,611,069 $ 621,302 $ 970,164 $ 648,513 $ 371,090
Credit Risk

Fixed income investment managers retained by the Retirement System follow specific investment
guidelines and are evaluated against specific market benchmarks that represent their investment style.
Fixed income investment managers typically are limited within their portfolios to no more than 5.0%
exposure in any single security, with the exception of United States Treasury and government agency
securities. The Retirement System’s credit risk policy is embedded in the individual investment
manager agreements as prescribed and approved by the Retirement Board.

Investments are classified and rated using the lower of (1) S&P Global Ratings (S&P) rating or (2)

Moody’s Investors Service (Moody’s) rating corresponding to the equivalent S&P rating. If only a
Moody'’s rating is available, the rating equivalent to S&P is u